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12 * 12
( ) 88 92 99 104 103 100
) ( 8.5 8.7 9.2 9.4 9.2 8.8
( ) 3,089 3,177 3,347 3,429 1,701 3,225
*2018 12 31 6

(b)
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........................ 97.9km
..................... 100km
..................... 16(
)
...... 16( )
..................... (2003 17 30 )
(2010 25 25 )
(2013 25 25 )
97.9km
2013 25
16 /
100km
HZM -

HZM
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12 2018 12 31
2019
ETC
71.3 82.1
GDP 6.8 6.9
2017 2018
2019

2020

1.2
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2018 10 24 HZM 4,000

33,000 2019 HZM

2019 10 HZM -
5,000
2019
HHI1
1,060
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)
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2012
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( )
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2015 26 2019 12 31
km
0.6
-19 0.9
20-39 1.2
40 1.8
N/A 2.1
2015 26
km 0.12
km
(D)
0.6
- ( ) 0.9
-10(10 ) 1.2
10-15(15 ) 20 1.8
15 40 2.1
2020
km 0.6
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10-19 1.5 2.1 2.1
39 3.16 3.16
40 3.75 3.75
- - 3.86 3.86
_ - 4.09 4.09
40
0.17
4.5
4.5
2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2019
12 * 12
36 40 47 51 58 59
« )
) ( 2.7 2.9 3.4 3.7 4.2 4.2
( ) 991 1,076 1,233 1,365 777 1,515
*2018 12 31
®
@
GPCG

63/239



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O00000000o0bOdoooooooo00o000o0o0o0odoooooo0o00000nodn(ecsss)

Oooooodo
B A A—F ORISR

SHE- [ ES L0 E ira-:.u--" T E.‘EI:.'-L-E:E'I.-I-\; tH}
........................ 200,000
.................. 600,000

2018 2019 10

2019 11 180
200,000 600,000

64/239



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)

ooooooo

2019 11 GPCG

37.5

2.55
2019 12 4.124
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(i)
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@iv)
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Q)

(i)

(iii)

@iv)
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(vi)
(vii)
viii)
(ix)
80
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4
o) (2019 12 31 )
/
/
00s 10 13 23.149,000,000  71.83
( SIHC )
2016 19 10,000 71.83
( SIICHCL )
50,000 71.83
2017 12 18
( SHCHIC )
5 1 ®)
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0000000
@ (2019 12 31 )
/
/
( ) 1981 10 30 97.5
SIH
100
¢ sm N 2005
1992 100
SIH
100
s , 2010 11 16
SIH
100
( SIH ) 2003 11 21
¢ ) 100
( ) 2003
(¢ )
2003 12 20,000 o7
100
( ) 1994 16 20,000
( ) 2019 10 16 315,050,000 97-5
SIH SIH SIH
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1988 27 I6))
2003 17 4,899,000,000
2019 11 29 10,000,000
(€H) 702,000,000 (471,000,000 )
2008 30
3 )
2019 12 31 ( ) % ( " 5 )
2018 2019
12 31 2 a1
26 29
41.3 40,85
10.9 8.46
( ) 298,525 * 532,164
* 2018 12 31
¢ )
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€Y
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ooooodo
2019 12 31
2018 12 31 12 ( ) 2019 12 31 ( )
EBITDA EBITDA
(D 1,460 1,310 (459)  (324) 527 1,409 1,248 (445)  (316) 487
700 611 (238)  (211) 162 735 627 (245)  (193) 189
2,160 1,921 (697)  (535) 689 2,144 1,875 (690)  (509) 676
- - - - - - 0 - @ @
2,160 1,921 (697)  (535) 689 2,144 1,875 (690)  (511) 674
-1% -2% -1% -4% -2%
15 2
- 2
1 3
(32) (€]
(6] o
) ©
an (€3))
672 643
-4%
(62) (22)
610 621
(©) ©
601 612
+2%
)
2018 2018 12 31 2018 12
2019 12 12 2018
12 31 12 2019 12 31
2018 12 31 12
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2,144 2018
2,160 1,409
2018 1,460
2019 ETC
ETC
735
2018 700
EBITDA (
) 2018 1,921 1,875
EBITDA
2018 611 627
EBITDA
2018 459 445
2018 697
690
EIT 25
2019
2018 324 316
848 ( )
2018 211 193
509
2018 535
2018 527
487
162 189
17 (

) 2018 689 676
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( )62.5  (
)GPCG 37.5
( )
2019 12 825
( 309 )
5.13
4,124 2019
12 25
2018 15
2019 12 309
2018
66.69
2018 32
37 2018 17 31
( ) 2018 672 643
(
) 2018 62
22 601 612 (

19.86 )
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2019
2020
2020
2020 17 2020
(M
(i)
HZM (2018 10 ) - - -
(iii)2019
10 2020 1.25 2020
(iv)
2018 2019 2018 2019
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
140 50 - 281
- 309 81 93
- 2
13 25
153 386 81 374
72 12
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ooooooo
( 145 )
2018 2019 2018 2019
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
203 218
4,080 3,758 1,128 1,112
190 256 109 95
24 44 675 563
10
559 558
4,497 4,276 2,480 2,338
2,017 1,938
( :50
2018 2019 2018 2019
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
76 47 3,078 2,641
5,940 5,729 430 456
183 183 355 389
430 456
14 21
6,643 6,436 3,863 3,486
2,780 2,950
:37.5 )
2018 2019 2018 2019
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
- 4 - 309
- 277 - 2
- 11 - 11
- 292 - 322
- (30)
2018 2019 2018 2019
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
6,424 6,520
4,839 4,846
30 24
11,293 11,390 11,293 11,390
4,869 4,870
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456,588 302,097
(1,001,909) (359,380)
/( (559,428) (95,920)
457 449
1,000
302 613
309
639
546
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1,257 (2018 12 31 263 )
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OooooOodd
@)
@
€©))
( )62.5  (
)GPCG 375 (
) (
) (
) 6,800 (
)
2,550 1,360
340 2,550
37.5 20 37.5
(37.5 )
824.80 309.30 2019 12
1,238.00 464.25 2020
2,061.20 772.95 2020 12 ()
(D 4,124.00 1,546.50
10.00 3.75 2019 12
2,666.00 999.75 2020 -2022 ( )
2,676.00 1,003.50
6,800.00 2,550.00

(¢)) 4,124 2019 12 25
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2020 25
777 (3.75 773
) 1,773 3.05
2019 12 309
2011 30
2012 12
351 2013 30
2016
912
2019 12 31 281 4,421
(1,112
95 3,214
) 4,702
(2018 4,999 )
(a) 99.8 (2018 99.8 ) 0.2 (2018 0.2 )

(b) 68 (2018 75 ) 24 (2018 23 ) (2018 )
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( ) 2003 23
2019 12 31
()
2003 25

)
2003 25

Gii) HHI
2004 2004 21 COFTEC

(iv) HHI

2004 14

(iii) 2004

(V) HHI

2005

(iii) 2004

(vi) HHI

2008

(iii) 2004

(vii) HHI
2013 11

(iii) 2004
(viii)HHI
2014 12
(iii) 2004
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(ix) HHI
2015 18
(iii) 2004
(x)  HHI
2015
(iii) 2004
(xi)
2019 11 29
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@
(2019 12 31 )
10,000,000, 000 3,081,690, 283 6,918,309,717
(2019 12 31 )
( 0.10 ) 3,081,690,283
3,081,690, 283
@
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oOoOooodn
®
(D) (D)
2012 10 31 @ 120,000,000 | 3,081,690,283 12,000,000 | 168,840,000 | 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2014 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2014 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2014 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2014 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2014 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2014 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 28 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2015 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 29 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2016 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 28 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
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) ()
2017 10 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2017 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 28 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 10 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2018 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 28 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 10 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
2019 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,335,938,228
(1) 120,000,000 ( )
)
(2019 12 31 )
) ) &)

89 3,056,167,681 99.17

6,109 25,522,602 0.83

6,198 3,081,690,283 100.00
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®)
(2019 12 31 )
)
)
V61110
3 2,213,449,666 71.83
A 2,213,449, 666 71.83
(¢))
2,213,449, 666 71.83
10) 18
@D 33| 305,087,338 9.90
33
@ 305,087,338 9.90
8 I
§ , 291,207,411 9.45
8 ' 291,207,411 9.45
22 207, :
(O)
2,809,744,415 91.18
(€))
( SIICHIC )
SIICHIC
( SIICHCL ) 100 SFO
15 SIICHCL  SIICHIC
(2) SIICHCL ( SIHC
) 100 SIHC SIICHCL SFO 15
3) D) ( GBL )
( ) 100 GBL SFO 15
) ( ) ( CTLIHK
) (
CTIHCL ) 100 CTIHCL CTLIHK SFO 15
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1 1 0
100
( ) SIHC
2019 12 31 10.1
11.320989 ( 1.12089 ))
100
2020 22 2020 2020
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@

3.10

3.13

2019
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Q) (i) G

-
-
o’

2019 19
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2018 12 31 2019 30

2019 12 31

2019
2018
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2019 12 31 2019
/
2019

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

(2019 19 ) N/A N/A

(2019 19 ) N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

P
(SBS JP)

(Companies Registry of Hong Kong) (Guide on Directors® Duties) /
( ) (Guide for

Independent Non-Executive Directors)
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(@) (o] (@]
o o )
(2019 19 ) © © °
(2019 19 ) ° © °
o o o)
o o o)
o o o)
P o o o
o o )
(SBS JP) o o o
/
( )
15
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@
0) © 2018 27 2019 19
© © o018 12
) © 2019 19
2018 12 31
2018 12 31
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
1,146 2,113
- 254
16 32
1,162 2,399
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
1,000,000 2 -
1,000,001 1,500,000 - 2
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
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12.
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
304,046 612,026
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
3,081,690,283 3,081,690,283
13.
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
2019 12 31
0.098 10.971394 305,852
2018 12 31
0.099 11.615472 2018
12 31 2018 30
0.097 11.114551
304,445 307,573
2018 30
0.10 11.4583 313,861
618,306 613,425
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
2019 12 31
0.101 11.320989 2018
12 31 2018 12 31
0.099 11.615472
305,087 311,251
2019 12 31 0.101 11.320989
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14.
MPF
30,000
18
2019 12 31 2019 12 31
MPF 1,651,000 2018 12 31
420,000
15.
2018 2019

2,020,789 2,024,539

2,520,218 2,520,218

1,401,142 1,582,767

(32,611)

(431,396) (483,895)

(1,573,335) (1,665,141)

3,937,418 3,945,877

2,449,500 2,449,500

(2,020,789) (2,020,789)

431,396 483,895

860,107 912,606

4,797,525 4,858,483
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2018 2019 12 31
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
( ( 50 50
4,899,000,0004,899,000,000
( ( 50 50 50 50
10,000,000
( 37.5 37.5
)
1997 30
10 50
10 48 10 45
702,000,000 471,000,000
2008 30
)
1,680,000,000 35
294,000,000 588,000,000
2003 17 30
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2,351,000,000
25

1,960,000,000
25

2018 12 31
4,899,000,000
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6,715,000,000
1,175,500,000

5,600,000,000

980,000,000

2019 12 31

10,000,000

oOoOooodn
35
2010 25
35
2013 25
50
37.5 2019 12 5

IFRS
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31
( )
2018 2019
418,117 366,346 784,463 565,170 366,782 931,952
7,056,333 11,806,442 18,862,775 6,540,804 11,388,116 17,928,920
7,474,450 12,172,788 19,647,238 7,105,974 11,754,898 18,860,872
. 400,345 151,943 552,288 433,605 94,197 10,060 537,862
50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
54,339 27,781 82,120 98,173 42,290 854,480 994,943
504,684 179,724 684,408 581,778 136,487 864,540 1,582,805
(397,472) (107,648) (505,120) (416,701) (122,269) (538,970)
- (3,909,320)  (6,129,621)  (10,038,941) (3,236,989)  (5,253,621) (8,490,610)
(1,720,214) (1,720,214) (1,825,211) (1,825,211)
(829,932) (829,932)
(203,958) (291,117) (495,075) (169,978) (309, 380) (479,358)

(4,510,750)  (8,248,600)  (12,759,350) (3,823,668)  (7,510,481)  (829,932)  (12,164,081)

- (359,171) (26,500) (385,671) (718,356) (28,500) (746,856)
. (5.,748) (8,293) (14,041) (4,914) (7.115) (12,029)
(642,097) (303,282) (945,379) (715,384) (285,083) (29,637) (1,030,104)
(1,007,016) (338,075) (1,345,091)  (1,438,654) (320,698) (29,637) (1,788,989)
2,461,368 3,765,837 6,227,205 2,425,430 4,060,206 4,971 6,490,607
45 50 45% 50% 37.5%
1,107,616 1,882,919 2,990,535 1,001,444 2,030,103 1,864 3,123,411
(32,611) (32,611)
860,107 860,107 912,606 912,606
1,107,616 2,743,026 3,850,642 1,058,833 2,942,709 1,864 4,003,406
910,671 36,212 946,883 819,638 35,439 855,077
2,018,287 2,779,238 4,797,525 1,878,471 2,978,148 1,864 4,858,483
4 56 36 57 0
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( )
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
(
) 1,651,051 754,243 3,130,862 1,470,760
51,708 1,171 198,655 7,255
1,702,759 755,414 3,329,517 1,478,015
(51,708) 1,171) (198,655) (7,255)
60,767 20,114 179,687 44,877 146
(19,230) (6,815) (19,230) (14,621)
(258,282) (100,262) (387,716) (190,504)
(62,330) (27,272) (103,760) (57,106) 44)
(413,018) (251,576) (786,648) (488,513)
(89,944) (143,358) (178,540) (254,670) (5,132)
(216,189) (58,733) (440,939) (110,857)
(
) 652,825 186,341 1,393,716 399,366 (5,030)
45 50 45 50 37.5
« ) 293,771 93,171 627,172 199,683 (1,886)
(32,611)
293,771 93,171 386,942 594,561 199,683 (1,886) 792,358
(
) 449,120 449,120 613,449 613,449
@) 3,990,000 179,022,000 2019 11
4,124,000,000 2019 12 2019 12 31
2020 2019 12 824,800,000
2,643,000
32,611,000
(i) 34,982,000 2018 12 31
76,372,000
16.
FVTOCI

144/239



EDINETOOOO

OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)

Ooooodo
17.
2018 337 4,591 4,928
1,273 88 1,361
2018 12 31 1,610 4,679 6,289
616 616
(337) (19) (356)
2019 12 31 1,273 5,276 6,549
2018 337 4,507 4,844
127 27 154
2018 12 31 464 4,534 4,998
255 106 361
(337) (19) (356)
2019 12 31 382 4,621 5,003
2018 12 31 1,146 145 1,291
2019 12 31 891 655 1,546
18.
2022
25
19.
2019 12 31 0.01 4.57 2018
12 31 0.01 4.39
2018 2019
4,036 2,916
136,046 46,865
5 4
140,087 49,785
25
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ooOoooOoo
20.

0.1
2018 2018 12 31 2019 12 31 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
2018 2018 12 31 2019 12 31 3,081,690,283 308,169 270,603
2013 10 22

10 i
ii
(iid)
iv
)
2007 25
2007 25 15
HHI
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2018 2019
1,531,917 1,445,326
1,647,638 1,693,379
3,179,555 3,138,705

403 400
85,310 302,910
114,778 1,533
200,491 304,843
3,380,046 3,443,548
270,603 270,603
2,410,081 3,002,569
2,680,684 3,273,172
2,690 3,371
696,672 167,005
699,362 170,376
3,380,046 3,443,548
114,778 1,533

* *
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22
2019 12 31
3,373,169,000 2018 12 31 2,780,681,000
1,035,480,000 2018 12 31 442,992,000 2,337,689,000 2018 12
31 2,337,689,000
( )
2018 2,716,969 (436,019) 722,780 3,003,730
_ - 24,657 24,657
13 (379, 280) 65,419 (304,445) (618,306)
2018 12 31 2,337,689 (370, 600) 442,992 2,410,081
- - 1,205,913 1,205,913
13 - - (613,425) (613,425)
2019 12 31 2,337,689 (370,600) 1,035,480 3,002,569
2009 30
2018 30 0.10 313,861,000
379,280,000
65,419,000
22.
FVTOCH
2018 - 69,310 - 69,310
959 - - 959
2018
959 69,310 - 70,269
- 19,590 - 19,590
83 - - 83
- (20,054) - (20,054)
2018 12 31 1,042 68,846 - 69,888
- 41,870 464 42,334
1,150 - - 1,150
- (32,704) - (32,704)
2019 12 31 2,192 78,012 464 80,668
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23.
2018 2019
- 280,969
- 280,969
2019 12 31
2018 2019
- 280,969
2019 12 31 HIBOR
1.05 HIBOR 1.2
24.
25.
€))
2018 2019
140,101 361,077
FVTOCI 11,100 22,600
151,201 383,677
8,975 290,622
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0ooo0d0
®)
Q)
2018 2019 2018 2019
5 4 - -
136,046 46,865 5,996 285,054
2019 12 31
2019 12 31
11,909,000 2018 12 31 6,503,000
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2019 12 31
42,392,000 2018 12 31 43,417,000
@n
23 19
19
100
2019 12 31
100 2018 12 31
100
2,331,000 2018 12 31 1,401,000
2019 12 31
100 2018 12 31
100
29,383,000 2018 12 31 42,006,000
Gib)

2019 12 31
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ooooood
ECL
12
ECL
2018 12 31
A+ 12 ECL 140,087
2019 12 31
12 ECL 311,224
A+ 12 ECL 49,785
(iv)
2019 12 31 243,107,000
2020 2020 2,500,000,000 2,244,165,000
850,000,000 763,016,000
2019 12 31 12
HIBOR 1.05 HIBOR 1.2
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©

2018 2019

FVTOCI

11,100,000 22,600,000

(EV/EBITDA)

347,000
2018 12 31 183,000
668,000 2018 12 31
310,000
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oooooog
26.
2018 2019 12 31
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
97.5 97.5 97.5 97.5
BVI 20,000 20,000
97.5 97.5
97.5 97.5
100 100
100
100
SIH 100 100 100 100
HH1
100 100
315,050,000
SIH
27.
2018 12 31

1,016
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2018
1,052
2018 12 31
28.
2018 2019 12 31
29.
2018 - 370,956 - 370,956
- (1,001,242) (667) (1,001,909)
- 619,405 - 619,405
- - 667 667
- 10,881 - 10,881
2018 12 31 - - - -
280,969 (639,226) (1,123) (359, 380)
- 628,587 - 628,587
- - 1,280 1,280
- 10,639 - 10,639
2019 12 31 280,969 - 157 281,126
546,221,000 2018 12
31 265,957,000 265,252,000 2018 12 31
265,957,000
30.
2019 12 31

1,924,000 2018 12 31

11
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2019 12 31

263,389,000

32.

2008 30
702,000,000

33.

34.
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471,000,000

85

2020

142

15

2020

2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 Decamber 20149

Siv manths enced Year ended

31 December 31 Decembar

NOITES 204 209

BB O RAME TN

Crthier income and ather expenses 7 3117 1, sy

Dhepresciadion 1154] {3613

Ceameral and adminkstrative expenuss (16,658) (36,9300
Finanoe costs L] (1, 30)
Share of results of jaint ventunes i Bahid, 184 TO0,552
PPrafit befons tax 327 50 663,621
IRCOME 13% expenie 9 (19,630 (42, 646)
Profit feor ths petiordyear 10 06,159 HEDATS

Cobuer compreduens iver incoine
Hiem that welll ot bse rerlassified o profit or loss:
Fair valise gain on investmenl in equily initrument at
fair value through other comprehensive incomse,
med of tax 417 10,350
T that iy bt rec Lassifiend sudmeguently 1o |.m.i||: o Joss:
Exchange gain {boss) ansing om tanshalion of

foneign aperalions 149 (2,127
Total compredsensivi income for e perd e 08,725 629,194
Profit fear ﬂ'll.-pleri.ud"'ﬁmr attributabile 1o:
Owerers of the Company 04, 612,026
MNon-conrolling intersts 113 B049
nanse B20.975
Total comprehensive incomes attributabbe to:
Owreers of the Company M 12 G0, 249
Mon-contmiling interests EARE] B
MET25 B2, 19
RATH cents RMER cents
Earmings per share 12
Basic S.487 19,86
ANMLIAL KIPORT 2010 i5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A5 al 31 December 20149

NEITES 018 G
Rl T RME 008
ASSETS
mon-current Assels
Interests in joint vertuires 15 4,797 525 4,B58, 483
Eepuity imstrument at falr value through
ather comprehensive income T 11,100 22,600
Propety and expripment 17 j,291 1,546
Amount due from a joint veniure [§i) - 311,214
4800916 5,193,853
Currend Assels
Depenits and prepayments L7a Ao
Othaer eceivables 14 Ga
Bank balances and cash 1% 140,087 49,785
140,779 50,673
Total Assels 4,950,695 5,144,526
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Shane rq-lil.ﬂ n 270,60 270, 60%
Share premium and resenes 4,568,631 4,575 455
Exquity attributabihe i owners of the Company 4,839,334 4,846,058
San-comtralling inlensis 10,233 24,020
Tolal Equity 3,060,467 4,470,078
r:hn-urzm! Liabsifity
[hsberreed tax liabsilities 22 9 B88 1, b6E
Current Liabilithes
Payables and aee ks 11,340 12,811
Bank loars it - 280,969
11,340 3, TED
Total Liabilities B1.,2I8 174,448
Total Equity and Liahilities 4,050,695 5,244,526
Cash and cash equivalenis 14,087 44,785
'I'i.ml'l.a.lq THANG* |i Liue
[irechion Direclion
* Far identiffcation purpose only
B Ao dwrsmt Holiings flay At Deevrlopmest Company Limied
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 Decognber 20149

Attribuetabie {n wners af the Compuny
Progle’s
Repablc
ol (China
("ML imvetment Ko
Shugy Stare  dlabwlery relmbisn  Tramslafos  Relamed Sab  qoutroling
daptil  premun e e e profit el nlerets Toal
FAMETOD  EMEW0)  ARGBEOD  AMEON  RAETG?  RVETGR  EMELN  RMETO0 BTN
A 1y 2010 I 1THHA 107,59 = ISEM| LATREOS 5 4EECD mm 5mm
[petarg sfpsdtenmy - . - 435 - . 1,54 . 155k
At 1 by 200 8 ettt JEE  1THMA 107 38% A5k WISEH| 4TRSS 5 151A3 e SImMNT
Far wakue i o vsdrrentin exuity
et df o vl throssgh cther
rmrehere noone, e ol L - - - a7 - - ar - ar
Enckange ganon tasbsion of koeign operaion - - - - 1 - ] - Hs
Predia o the peniod - . - - - 300 Tk 3 Tt L0 108154
Totul poerpeshesihe income ke e period - . - ar L} 300 Dk B L1 WMF15
Dividenth recognised a8
dritrbtin d-.u‘l'ghprndl'\hk'llil = U - = B A (30RAA5)  GALEIDG) [
Daridesdh pued 1 nonconmlling e - - - - - - - 1 1
A 31 31 Dicorre 201 DO LITAR WM ST (BONEN LATRADE  4NIRIM MAIEE  ABAAET
Fare wakue g vesiemen n exuity
Inatmamemn) al fait wiloe throgh ctfen
omprehenihe atome, fef ol tn - - - 0358 - - 10,350 - 10350
Lnchange o o iramlion of vstn opeibom - - - - & - [rA b ] - [y ]
Predi o the yeat = = = = = BILENG GILED LM RMAT
Totul coerprehesshe inome i he yeur - - - 5] @iz WL a1 LR T ]
Trateer beburen resnian - - { Ex5) - - 11.575) = = -
Didenih revugrsen 2
dhtilastam duting the year Nt 1) - - - - = W4T AT - AL
Didech pued 18 nofoonmilling mless - - - - - - = 506N (NG
s 17 Deecernler 101% moM LITME 1M A BREAT ATATD MRS WA LT

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated statement of chanpes in equity of the Group in
Renminbi ("RMB") (the presentation currency of the Groupl, the equily transactions and accumulated
carmings denominated in Hong Kong Dollar ("HEKDT) are translated at the exchange rates at the
transaction dates. Before the change in funclional currency of the Company from HRD to RMB during
the year ended 30 June 2009, the exchange differences recognised in translation reserve represented
the difference between the equity transactions and accumulated camings ranslated at the exchamge
rates at the transaction dates and the assets and labilities translated at the closing rales at the oned
of each reporting period. Subsequent o the change in functional currency of the Company, the
exchange differences recogmised in anslation reseeve represented translation of its foreign operations.

The special final dividend for the year ended 10 June 2018 of RMB10 cents per share amounting to
approximately BMB313,861,000 was distibated fram the share premivm arisen at the time before the
change in funclional currency of the Cormpany from HED 1o BMB, Accondingly, the share premium
and the corresponding translation reseree nae been debited by RMB379, 280,000 and credited by
RMBGS, 419,000 respectively.

AKNLAL KIPCHT 2004 7
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Far the year ended 31 December 2019

Y1 months
e Year ended
31 Dercermiaer A1 Decembier
2018 29

RMGTHID RME 008
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit befone lax 127,609 G&3, G2
Adjurtrruents for:

Diviclend income lrom equity instrument

at fadr walve thmugh other comprebensive income RLETIN] 34,1200
Inteni=d incoame (7. 128) 14,080)
[N expe e (ili T 1,260
Gl o disposal of propety and egquipment - (144)
Met exchange loss 2,86 5,892
Depreciation of property and equipment 154 361
Shane ol fesules of joint ventines 340, 188 (7D, 552)
Operating cash flows belome movements in working capetal [T, ka0 (30, TA2)
Increwse in other eoevaliles - (6E)
[ s | nenesase) in depeosits and prepaymisnts Ha1 {142y
Inerease (decreaxse) in payvables and sceruals 1462 (1,685)
WET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (14,1073 {34,637}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Advance ko a joint ventune - (30, 3000
Capatal inpeciion i a joing veniune - (3,750
Purchases of propesty and equipment (1,361 (616}
Diwiehemids mwoasivied (met of PRC “ll'l'lullﬂrlg [FEY A4%, 120 613,449
Interest fosajvod £A20 2,170
Moceeds on disposal of propety and equipment - 144
WET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 456,588 302,097
FIMAMCING ACTIVITIES
M bank loans nnised 2654957 540,211
Rank Inans repaid [@h5957) (2h5,252)
Imterest prald (BAT) (1,123
Diwidends paid to:

= owners of the Company 10,000, 143) 24, 064)

— non-canimlling infenests of a subsidiary 1,099; N5162)
NET CASH SED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,001,909) {35‘9‘.1“[:!
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (5544 28) (95,9210)
CASH AND CASH FOUIVALEMTS RROUGHT FORWARD &1 ,461 140,087
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHAMNGE RATE CHAMNGES .54 5,618
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEMTS CARRIED FORW ARD 140,087 4%,TR5

Noter  Cash and cash pouivalents comprise caste at banks and cash on band, and deposits with banks subjected o
-r::#nllu'.;r.l wisk aof chanpe i valise, and with o maturty of thiee rwnibs oe less fom date n[pl:.ri-ng
e whorston bvrsieni Hlodings ey A Devboprmeest Corrpany Limisd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

1. General Information

Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company Limited (formerly known
as Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited) ithe “Company”) s an exempted company with
limited liahility incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ithe "Stock Exchange”). The Company’s immediate holding
company is Shenzhen Investment International Capital Holdings Infrastructure Co,, Lid,
{7 A0 R P TR LR T F]0, a company incorporated in the British Vimgin slands with
limited liability, The Company’s ultimate holding company is Shenzhen Investment Holdings
Co,, Lid (FEWNTEESREE 23], a company established in the PRC with limited liability.,

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section of corporate information in the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company, Details of the principal activities of the
principal subsicharies and the joint ventures are set out in notes 26 and 15 respectively.

The Company’s functional currency and presentation currency are EMB,
2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors passed on 27 August 2008, the reporting
peried end date of the Group was changed from 30 June fo 31 December because the directons
o the Company (the "Directors™) determined to being the annoal reporting period end date of the
Group in line with that of the Company's joint ventures established in the PRC and the ultimate
holding company. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statemenis for the current period
cover the twelve month period ended 31 December 20019, The corresponding comparative
amounts shown for the consolidated statement of profil or less and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and refated
nodes cover a six-month period from 1 July 2008 10 31 December 2018 and therefore may not be
comparabile with amounts shown for the current yvear.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors have given careful consideration
to the future liguidhty of the Group in light of the fact that the Groop’s carrent liabilities excecded
its current assels by RMB243, 107,000 as at 31 December 2019,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the pear ended 31 Decowribier 2010

2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements continued

The Directars are of the opinion that taking inte account of the new uncommitted banking
facilities amounting to HK$2,500,000,000 (equivalent to RMB2,244,165,000) and
HKSH50,000,000 (equivalent to RMBTE3,016,000) obtained by the Group in January 2020 and
March 2020 respectively of which there are proven recosds of cash inflows generated from the
joint ventures of the Group together with the good relationship between the relevant banks and
the Company’s ultimate holding company, enhancing the Group™s ability on obtaining those
hank Borrowings when needed as well as internally generated funds of the Group, the Group
has sufficient working capital for its present requirements for the next twelve manths from
1 December 2009, Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
poing concern basis,

3. Application of New and Amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs")

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following new and amendments to 1IFRSs issued by International
Accounting Standards Board for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRIC 23 Uncerainty over Income Tax Trealmens
Amendments to [FRS 9 Frepayment Features with Negalive Compensation
Amendments (o 1AS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 201 5-2017 Cycle

Amendments to 1AS 28 “Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures”

The amendments clarify that the Group applies IFRS 9 “Financial [nstruments” (*IFRS 97),
including the impairment requirements, [0 long-torm interests inan associate or joint venture
o which the equity method s nod applied that form part of the net investment in the investee.
Furthermaore, in applying IFES 9 (o long-term interests, the Group does not take into account
adjustments to their carrying amount required by 1AS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint
Wentures” (1AS 287) (e adjustments (o the carying amount of long-lerm interests arising from
the allocation of losses of the investee or asscssment of impairment in accordance with [AS 28).

The Directors do nol anticipate that the application of the amendmemts o 1AS 28 will have a
material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

I addition o (e above, the application of (he new and smencments o IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the current
yiear and prior period andior on the disclosures sel oot m these consolidated financial statements.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

3. Application of New and Amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFR58") (continued)

Mew and amendments to IFRSs inissue bul not vel effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments o IFRSs that have been
issued but are not et effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to IFRS 3 Diefinition of a Business?

Amendmoents to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets betwesn an Investor and
and 1AS 28 its Associate or joint Venture!

Amentdmoents to 1AS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Mon-curnent®

Amendments 1o 1AS 1 and IAS B Definition of Material®

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform®
1AS 39 and IFRS 7

Fiective for annual pesiods beginning on or afler 1 Janaary 2001
Effective for business combinations and asset acoquisitions for which the acquisition dabe Is on or afier the
beginaing af the fisst annual period beginning on or after 1 Janeary 2020

J Efiective for annual peniods beginning an or afler a date 8o be determined

d Efiective for annual pedods beginning on or afier 1 January 2020

1 Effectiver for annual pencds beginning on or afler 1 January 2022

In addition to the above new and amendments (o IFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting was issucd in 2018, s conscquential amendments, the Amendments to
References o the Conceplual Framework in IFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020,

The Directors anticipate that the application of all new and amendments fo IFRSs wall have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foresecable future,

4. Significant Accounting Policies
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by
International Accounting Standards Board. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required By the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities an The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companics Ordinance,
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis excepl fo
cortain financial instruments that are measured af fair values at the end of cach reparing period, as

explained in the accounting policies sel out Below,

Historical cost is generally based on the far value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the pear ended 31 Decowribier 2010

4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o transfer a hability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inestimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement andior disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,

In addition, for financial reparting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair villue measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

& Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for wdentical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2 inputs are inpots, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
ohservable for the asset or lability, either directly or indirectly; aned

Level 3 inputs are unobservalble inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are sof out below,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
entities conteallisd by the Company and its subsiciaries, Control is achieved when the Company:
*  has power over the investee;

#  jsexposed, of has rights, o variabile retuems from its involvement with the investee; and

*  has the ability 1o use its power to affect its returms.

Thie Group reassesses whether or fol it controls an imvestee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes 1o one or more of the three elements of contral listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary beging when the Croup obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidian,

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive imcomae are attributed to the owners of the
Company and 1o the non-cantrolling interests, Tolal comprehensive income of subsidiaries is

attributed to the ovwners of the Company and to the pon-caontralling interests even i this results
in the non-controlling interests having a delicit balance,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

4. Significant Accounting Policies icontined

Basis of consolidation (contined
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies,

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consalidation,

Mon-confrolling interests in subsichiaries are presented separately from the Group's equity therein,
which represent present ownership inferosts entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the redevant subsidiaries upon liquidation,

Interests in joint venlures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
confraciually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parfies sharing control,

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are preparcd using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate
adjustments have been made to conform the joint venture's acoounting policies to those of the
Group. Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture i initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter (o recopnise the
Grroup's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture, Changes
in net assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income ane
not accounted for unless such changes resulied in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
jaint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the joint venturel, the Group disconlinues recognising its share of further
Insses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incorred legal o
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venfure,

The Group assesses whether theee i3 an objective evidence that the interest in a joint veniune may
be impaired. When any objective cvidence exists, the entine carrving amount of the imvestrment
{inclucing poodwill) is tested for imparment in accordance with [AS 36 “lmpaiiment of Assets”
as a single assel by comparing ils recoverable amount (highee of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impaiment recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment, Any reversal
of that impairment is recognised in accordance with 1AS 36 (o the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the pear ended 31 Decowribier 2010

4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued

Interests in joint veniures icontinued)

The Group has incurred additional development expenditure for the construction and
development of the toll expressways operated by the joint ventures, which were nod accounted
for by those entities, Such cost are included in additional cost of investments in joint veniures
and are amortised over the joint venture period on the same basis as that adopted by the
relevant joint ventures in respect of amorisation of its project cost, commencing from the date
of operation of the praject undertaken, On disposal of a joint venture, the attributable amount of
the unamaortised additional cost of investments is included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal.

When a group enfity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the joint venfure are recognised in the Croup’s consolidated financial
statements anly 1o the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not related to the Groap,

Property and equipment

Praperty and equipment are langible assets that are held for use in the supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated
staternent of financial position at cost lpss subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment, if any,

Depreciation is recognised so as foowrite off the cost of assets over their estimated vseful lives,
using the straight-line method, The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are revieswed
al the end off each reporting penod, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of propery and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic
benefits are expected 1o anse from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
logs.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

4. Significant Accounting Policies icontined

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or asl a performance obligation is satisfied, L.e, when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular perfformance obligation is transferred
1o the custamer,

A performance obligation represents a pood or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same,

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference fo the progress
twowards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is mof:

s the customer simultanecusly receivies and consumes the benefits provided by the Groups
performance as the Group performs;

¢ the Group's performance creates or enhances an assef that the customer controls as the
Group performs; of

¢« the Group's perfformance docs not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable rnght to payment for perdformance completed to date,

CHherwise, revenue is recognised at a paint in time when the costomers abdains control of the
distinct good or service.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable (o the acguisition, construction or production of qualifyving
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended vse or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in peofit or loss in the pedod in which they are incurred.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16 in accordance with transitions in
nole 3)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the wse of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

Fowr contracts entered into or madified or arising from business combinations on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under IFES 16 at inception, madification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not he reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsecuently
changed.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assels

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of car parks and staff
guarters that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option, It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets,
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets ane recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the torms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lesee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Oiperating lease payments is recognised as an oxpense on a straight-line basis over the lease
tesr.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entily, fransactions in curencies
other than the functional currency of that enfity (foreign currencies] are recognised at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary ilems denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-mongtary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency ane
not retranslated.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

4. Significant Accounting Policies tcontinued

Foreign currencies icontimed)
Exchange differences arising on the settlerent of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
mignetary iterms, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e,
EMB} using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the pericd, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are
used, Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve,

On the disposal of a foreign operation ithat is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset). all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassificd to profit or loss,

Retirement benefit costs
Payments 1o defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
emplovess have rendered service entitling them to the contributions,

Taxation
Income fax expense represents the sum of the tax currently pavable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the vear. Taxable profit differs from
profit briore tax becavse of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
iterns that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carryving amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tox assets are generally recognised for all deductible tlemporary
differences to the extent that it is probakxle that taxable profits will be available against which
these deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the tlemporery difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
lFabilities in a transaction that affects peither the taxable prodit nor the accounting profit,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued

Taxation (contimed

Deferred tax liahilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able 1o
cantrol the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probahle that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recopnised to the extent that
it is prabable that there will he sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefis of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foresecable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
recuceed to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
penod inwhich the hability is settled or the asset is realised, hased on tax rate (and tax Llaws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred fax habilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
fallow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the
same taxable entity by the same authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or direcCtly in equity, inwhich case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group enlily becomes a parly
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assefs are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets thal require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marked place.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontined

Financial imstruments dcontinued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
iother than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
o deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liahilities, as appropriate, on
initial recopnition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets of
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss,

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant period,
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments {including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial lability, or, where appropriate, a shorer period, to the net camying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assels
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions. are subseauently measured at amortised cost:

¢ the financial assot is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding,

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through ather comprehensive income (CFYVTOCT):

*  the financial assel is held within a business model whose abjective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms give rse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding,

All ather financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, except
that at the date of initial application of ITRS 2finitial recognition of a financial assed the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity imeestment is neither held for tfrading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acguirer ina business combination (o which IFRS 1 “Business
Combinations” applies,
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued

Financial instruments iconfinsed

Financial assels icantime)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assels (continued)

Amewtised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instrumentsi/receivables subsequently measured at
FWTOCL, For financial instruments other than purchased o originated credit-impaired financial
asseds, imterest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carmving
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below), For financial assels that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective inferest rate to the amorised cost of the
financial asset from the nesd reporting period, If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applving the eifective interest rate to the gross carrving amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impained,

Equily instruments designated as at AVTOC!

Investments in equity instraments at FYTOCH are subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject fo impairment assessmaent.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividenels from these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly regresent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, Dividends are included in the other income and
other expenses ling item in profit or loss,

Imparrment of financial assots

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss ("ECLY) model on
financial assets (including other receivables, amount due from a joint venture and bank balances
and cashl which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL s updated at cach
reporting date to reflect changes in credit eisk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the BCL that will result from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relovant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to resull from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s histoncal credit loss oxpenence, adjusted for
factors that are specific o the deliors, geneeal econamic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reparting date as well as the forecast of futuee conditions.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies icontined

Financial instruments dcontinued)

Financial assets iconfinued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assels (continued)

Impairment of financial a3se85 (continued)

For all instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12-maonth ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL, The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default oocwrring since initial recognition,

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the rsk of a defaull occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition, In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and gualitative information that
is reasonatdle and supportaide, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost o effort,

In parficular, the following information s taken into account when assessing whether credit nsk
has increased sipnificantly:

* an actual or expected sipnificant deferioration in the financial instrument’s external (if
availabile) or intermal crodit rating:

* significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debitor;

*  pxisting or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

*  an actual or expoected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that results ina significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability 1o meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more

than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonsirates othenwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 Decomber X009

4. Significant Accounting Policies continued)

Financial instruments icantimaeed)

Financial assels jcontinued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assels (continued)

Sipnificant incraase in crecit risk fcontinued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
fovwe credit risk at the reporting date, A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
il it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong capacity (o meet ifs contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will nat necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil s
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument 1o have low credit risk
when it has an intermal or extermal credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions,

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk ane revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
pact due,

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management. the Group considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debior
is unlikely to pay its creditars, including the Group, in full iwithout taking inlo account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have ocourred. Evidence that a
financial assed is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

fal significant fimancial difficulty of the ssuer or the borrower:

(b  a breach of contract, such as a defaalt or past due event;

cl  the lenderis) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons rclating (o the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) wioukd
not otherwise consider;

id) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
renrganisation; or

il the disappearance of anactive market for that financial asset becawse of financial difficultics.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

4. Significant Accounting Policies icontined

Financial instruments qcontinued)

Fimancial assets {continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assels (continued)

Wiite-oif palicy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty
i in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where approprate. A write-off constilutes
a derecognition event, Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss,

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default {ie. the
magnitucle of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at defaull, The assessment of the
probabiiity of defaull and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking intormation. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weighis,

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash floss that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective inferest rate determined al initial recognition,

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where evadence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the financial instruments are groupedd on the following
brasis:

«  Mature of financial instruments (i, the Group's other receivables are cach assessed as a
separale grouplh

*  Past-chue status;

*  Mature, sice and industry of detdors; and

*  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management (o ensure the constituenis of cach group

continue to share similar credit risk charactenistics,

Interest income i caloulated based or the gross carrying amount of the inancial assel onless the
financial asset is credit impaired, inwhich case interest income is calculated based on amortiscd
cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 Decomber X009

4. Significant Accounting Policies icontinued;

Financial instruments icontinscd)

Derecognition of financial assels

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset o another entity,

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit and loss,

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recopnition to measure at FVTOC!, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transfermed o retained
profits.

Financial liabilities and equily

Classification as debt or equity

Detat and equity instruments are classified as either financial liakdlities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual armrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an eguity instrument.

Equily instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its labilities. Equity instruments issued by a proup entity are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct Bsue costs.

Financial liahilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Financial liabilities al amortised cost
Financial liabilities including pavables and bank loans are subsequently measuned at amortised
cost, using the offective interest method,

Derecognilion of financial Habilitics

The Group derecognises financial liabilines when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
fimancial liability derecognizsed and the consideration pad ond payable is recognised in profit or
Ioss.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

4. Significant Accounting Policies tcontinued

Impairment on property and equipment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property and
cquipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in oreder to determing the extent of the impairment (if any),

The recoverable amount of property and cquipment are estimated individually, When it is not
passibile to estimate the recoverahle amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that corporate assets may be impaired,
I such indication exists, comporate assets ane also allocated o individual cash-generating units,
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
dhiscount rate that reflocts current market assessmoents of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or a cash-generating unitl is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit] is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent hasis 10 a cash-generating unit, the Group comparnes
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated o that group of cash-generating
unils, with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment is allocated first to reduce the carrving amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
cach asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
ni reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal G measurablel, its value in
usee (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assels of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment is iecognised immediately in peofit or loss,

Where an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assed (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-gencrating units) is increased to the revised cstimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the mereased carrving amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been delermined hae o impasement been recagnised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit o a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment is recogniscd immediately i prrofit ar loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear endhed 31 December X110

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrving
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not reaclily apparent from other sources, The estimates
anel associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis, Revisions fo
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period. or in the year of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods,

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the muost significant effect an the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of Guangrhou-Shenzhen-Zhuhai Superhighway Company Limited ("GS
V7, Guangdong Guangrhou-Zhuhai West Superhighway Company Limited (“GE West
V") and Guanpgrhou Zhentong Development Company Limited (8 5 55 9§ 5 5 2 45 6
2 8]} (“Xinlang JV") as joini venlures

All G5 IV, GZ West |V and Xintang, [V are limited [fability companies whose legal form confoers
separatiom hetween the partics (o the joint arrangement aned the Company itself, Furthermore,
there are no contractual arrangements or any other facts and circumstances that specify that the
parfies to the joint arangement have rights o the assets and obligations for the liabalities of the
jaint arrangement. Accordingly, GS IV, GZ West 1V and Xintang |V are classified as joint ventures
of the Group. Details are set out in note 15,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
{oomlinied)

Key sources of estimalion uncerlainty

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sowrces of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting periods that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
vear,

Interests in joint venlures/share of resulls of joint venlures

(i) Amaortization of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures
Amaortisation of concession infangible assets of the joint ventures of the Group is calculated
based on units-of-usage basis, e, the ratio of actual traffic volume of the underlying toll
expressways for a particular period over the total expected traffic volume of the underdying
toll expressways over the remaining concession periods of the service concession
agreements. The total expected traffic volume over the remaining concession period was
estimated by the management with reference to a report prepared by a third party traffic
consultant in a prior vear taken into consideration of various factors such as the annual
growth rate of the traffic volume, the actual traffic volume in the recent periods, the
change af the transportation network of the region and government policies relating fo the
toll expressway operation in the PRC. As part of the established policy of the Groap, the
management has reviewed the total expected traffic volume at the end of the reporting
perods, Adjustments may need to be made to the carrving amounts of concession intangible
asseds should there be a material difference between the total expected traffic volume and
the actual results.

As at 31 December 2009, the interests in joint venfures amounted to RMEB4,B58,483 000
(31 December 2018: RMB4, 797 5250000 and the share of results of joint ventures for the
year then ended 31 Decembor 2019 amounted to RMBZ00,552,000 isix months ended
31 December 200 86: RMEIS0,188,0000. Included in the share of results of joing venfunes was
an amount of RMBG24, 304,000 (six months ended 31 December 2078: RMB326,003,000),
which represented the share of amortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint
ventures of the Group. The managemoent considers that the amortisation s calculated by
reference to the best estimates of the total expected traffic volumes of the underdving tall
expressways and they should not be materially different from the acteal traffic volumes
im future. The current year amorfisation of concession infangible assets is less (six months
ended 31 December 200 8: les<) than the amortisation estimated in the prier financial
period based on the then expectoed traffic volumes for futuee financial years and the effect
on share of results of joint ventures is approximate o RMB26, 393,000 six months ended
31 December 200 8: RMB2Z,097 0000,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For ihe vear erled 11 December X149

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
Coomvlimued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Interests in joint venlures/share of resulls of joint ventures fcontinued)

{ii) Resurfacing obligations of the joint ventures
The joint ventures of the Group have contractual obligations under the contractual service
arrangements to maintain the toll expressways to a specified level of serviceabilily over the
respective concession pericds, These oblipations to maintain or restore the ol expressways,
except for upgrade services, are to be recopnised and measured as resurfacing obligations.
Resurfacing obligations had been made at the present value of expenditures expected 1o be
incurred by the joint ventures to settle the obligations,

As at 31 December 2019, the interests in joint ventures amounted to RMB4, 858,483,000
(31 December 2018: RMB4,797,525,0000 and share of results of joint ventures for the
vear then ended 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB7 00,552,000 (six months ended
31 December 2018 RMBI40,188.000). Included in the inlerests in joint ventures was an
amaunt of RME236,207,000 (31 December 201 8; RMB220,243,0000, which represented
the share of provision for the resurfacing obligations of the joint ventures of the Group,

The amount expected (o be required to settle the obligations at the end of the reporting
period is determined based on the number of major resurfacing works to be undertaken over
the concession periods under the service concession agreemaents and the expected costs to
b incurred for each event, The costs are then discounted to the present value based on a
pre-tax discount rate,

The expected costs for maintenance and resufacing and the timing of such events to take
place involve estimates made by the management, which were based on the resurfacing
plans of the Group, historical costs incurred for similar activities and the latest quotations
from the service provider.

If the expected expenditures, resurfacing plans and discount rate were different from the
management’s current sstimates, the change in resurfacing obligations is required to be

accounted for prospectively.

The management are of the view that the discount rate currently used in the current estimate
should reflect the timee value of money and the risks specific to the obligations.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

6. Segment Information

The Group's reportable and operating segments are determined based on information reported
to the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) for the purpose of resource allocation and
perormance assessment,

Information reported to the CODM, including segment revenue, the Group's share of joint
ventures” earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation before net exchange
gainfloss ("EBITOAY), the Group's share of joint ventures’ depreciation and amaortisation
including amorisation of additional cost of investments in joint ventures (“depreciation and
amortisation”), the Group’s share of joint ventures” inferest and tax before tax on exchange
gaindloss and including withholding tax on earnings distributed by a joint venture ("interest
and tax"), and segment results, During the second half of the year, the Group commenced the
business engaging in new land development and wtilisation project along with the establishment
of Xintang IV, a company established in the PRC to engage in the development of residential
project on the Xintang interchange (“Xintang Interchange”), and it is considered as a new
reportable and operating segment by the CODM. The CODM is more specifically focused on
individual toll expressways projects and new land development and utilisation project jointly
operated and managed by the Group and the relevant joint venture partners during the period’
vear. Accordingly, the Group's reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8 “Opoerating
Segments” are therefore as follows:

- Guangzhou-5henzhen Superhighway ("G Superhighway™)
- Guangzhou-Zhubai West Superhighway (“GZ Wiest Superhighway™)
- Xintang Interchange
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For the year ended 31 Decomber X009

6. Segment Information contimed
Information regarding the above segments is reported below.

Sepment revenue and results
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

6. Segment Information contined

Segment revenue and resulls (contimued

The segment revenue represents the Group's share of joint ventures’ toll revenue received and
receivable (nel of value-added tax) from the operations of toll expressways in the PRC based on
the profit-sharing ratios specified in the relevant joint venture agreements. All of the segment
revenue repored above is earned from external customers,

The segment results represent the (1) Group's share of joint ventures” results from the aperations
of toll expressways and land development and utilisation in the PRC before net exchange gain/
loss inet of related income tax) based on the profif-sharing ratios and shareholding percentage
specified in the relevant joint venture agreements, (i) net of the withholding tax attributed to the
dividend received from and the undistributed camings of the joint ventures; and ([ii) amortisation
of additional cost of investmients in joint ventures. This is the measure reportedd to the CODM for
the purposss of resource allocation and pedformance assessment,

The total segment resulls can be reconciled to the share of results of joint ventures as presented
in consolidated statement of profit o loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Six monihs
ended Year ended
51 Dvvemlne 31 Decembeer
A e
BAE 0 RME 000
Tastal segwent resails 354 945 674,424
Add;
et exchange loss (net of mlased Incomes tax) 34,367 (15,742)
Withhalding tax atiributed to the dividend received irom and the
undistribubed eamings o the joint ventunes 19,5490 41,4870
Share of results of joint ventures as presented in corsolidated
staterrent of profit or loss and other comprelensive income 340,188 700,552
ANNLIAL HEPURT J014 I
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For the vear endhed 31 December X110

6. Segment Information contimed

Other segment information

The helow other segment information, included in the measure of segment profit ar loss,
represents the Group's share of interest income of the joint ventures. Such amount relating 1o
the joint ventures are eliminated under equity method of accounting to reconcile from “Segment
total” to "Consolidated total”.

G5 GEWed Ynlrg ~ Sepmant Crrwrdidatiod

Supehighway Sepabighway  Interchang Wl Dimirstos  Unallocaled folal

RATATI RME 000 LB 00 RATR T RAO0 AR G0 AT T

S oty erded 31 Diecemiber 5018 14 i - Ly ] ,04% T Tin
Yot mded 11 Decersher 1019 46T 13 55 5159 5.15% 4,080 4088

Geographical information

The aperations of the Group's joint ventures are located in the PRC. Al of the joint ventures”
revenue from external customers was generated from the services provided in the PRC and the
location of the non-current assets excluding interests in joint ventures, amount due from a joint
wenture and equity instrument at FYTOCT amounting (o RMB1, 546,000 (31 December 200 8;
RMBT,291,0005 are in Hong Kong.

Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets and labilities are not disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as they

are not regularly provided 1o CODM dor the purpose of resource allocation and performance
asspssment
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

7. Other Income and Other Expenses

Six monihs
encled Year ended
1 Ducembis 31 Decembar
20148 2019
RMB N0 HAB 00N
Inferest incomie from:
Bank deposicss T4 1,156
Aroun due from a joenl venture - 1,924
Ml excluange loss (2826 {5, 892)
Dividend sncome from equity insirurent af FYTOC] [ 71] 3120
Caain on diqﬂsal nl'ptniwfty an rqu.-ipmrnl = 144
Cithes 218 214
5117 1, b
#i. Share of Resulls of Joint Ventures
i months
endel Year ended
%1 [Mcember 31 Decembaer
ElLE FiILL
BAR B0 RAB 000
Shane of results of joint ventures before shane of |rrq'.|u1w.| inlomst
expenses incurmed by a point venlure an inlenst-inee registered
1.',||;|I!I.1I comribulione made by the Cmoup and amortisation of
aclditional cod of Investmenis in pint ventuns (haole 15) 386942 79,358
Amowtisation of addibonal oost of irvestmenis in joind ventuns fibia, 75| [EA R
Share of Impuied inlerest eapenses incumed by a joint venture on
interestfress regstened capita ] contratastsons made by the Croup i2%,457) (32,499)
Imputed intersst income mecognised Ly the Group on interst-free
registered capital contributions made by the Group 25,452 L
140,188 T, 552
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the pear ended 31 Decowribier 2010

9. Income Tax Expense

Sex montlies

emifed Year ended

11 Decomiber 31 December

018 M9

R T RATE DO

The tax charge comprises:

FRC Enterprise Incomse Tax (“EIT™) 20,114 EERT
Letiacred tak ihioie: 13). o) S R0

14,650 43,646

N provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there was no assessable profit derived
from or arising in Hong Kong for the period/year.

The EIT charge of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 included an amount of
RMB32,704,000 (six months ended 31 December 2018: RMB20,054,000) representing the 5%
withholding tax imposed on dividends declared during the periodiyear by a joint venture of the
Croup of which the corresponding amount had already been provided for deferred tax in prior
years in respect of undistributed earnings of a joint venture,

The income fax expense for the periodfyear can be reconciled to the profit before fax per
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income s 1ol ows:

Sin muonths

v Year ended

31 Decomber A1 December

mia 9

R T RALG OO

Prodit before ay 327809 e |

Tax at nesmal PRC income lax rate of 25%

isin manihs ended 31 December 2008: 25%) 1,952 165,905
Eifect of dliffervad tax rales on incomee tas expense 190 {503y
Tan effect of income not taxahle for ax purposes 11,8451 b1}

Tax edfect of oxpenses not deductible jor tax pusposes 5,080 11,113
Tax efiect of shore of sesalls of jord venluies. 15,047 (175,138)

Withhelding tax on earmings distributed by a join venture 14,5490 41,870

InceMme tax expense 19,650 42,646
114 swershn drvrsbreni Hicldngs Hey Arva Dveeboprmesd  company Limdind
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

10, Profit for the Period/Year

Six months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 Decembaer

20148 2019

EAE TN HATR Ty

Profit for the period‘yvear has been amived at after charging:

Audibor's remunemtion 1,141 1,542

[Direciors” emoduments (ate 11) 2853 B,279
b staff costs TS 15,315

Toilal s1aff cosls 09936 21,594

Drfﬂu‘i.ﬂ!im ol proguety amil 1tp.1'1:rnpnl 154 31

Fimance costs (Mobe) [ 1,304

Short-lerm lease expense - el

Mabe: The amount represents the bank charges and bank loan inlerest for the periodyear.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the pear ended 31 Decowribier 2010

11. Directors” and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments

Directors” emoluments
The emoluments paid or pavable to each of the 9 (six months ended 31 December 201 8: 8)
Directors were as follows:

S i esind 11 Diecenber 2010 Vear ednd 11 Devember 119
(rirituten Loriribation
B [
relmenerd Salaries relrenierd
Deaon (et Duoeiongry  benely Dontor’  andofer Ducwfmay  bereliy
LT b [ Toiad e beari berin, plars Tolad
DUEDN RMETOD  RMATI  RUETOD RMEDE DM DAY RNIDN MAROD RAATTNO
Nass-wretive Dirertors
Drergya LI ke o - - - . " = = = = !
Qrgsong L™ e b 1] - - - 1 ] = = = W
oy CA o) bl - - - N m - - - w
acang EANG* iroie - - - W - - - Hi
Eurruive Dirrrions
Tiallang BHANG" L1 ] - - Ml I L 4] 4 L
Chergg WL o k7 - . ™ M L) 1 mn ral
(110 Ly [ih - - it 1T L i m 13
Ineperniend Nmicudine
Drerian
iz Duawid Mum B i [ - - . 1 i - - - ™
' Lmg CHING 14 = : 1 I = = = he ]
Tory Chang MmN I - - - e L - - - Im
1] L0 - . 1M 1 1L L% i ki

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for their services in connection
wilh the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group, The emoluments of the Non-
executive Directors and Independent Mon-executive Directors shown above were paid for their
services as Directors,

Mobes:

lah M, Zhengyu LIU® was a Nop-executive Director and the Chalrman of the Board of Directors of the Company for

the periodiyear.

=T X" Cringyong GL* was appointed as a MNon esecutive Directar of the Company on 27 Augest 2008 and coased
fior act as g Mon-executive Directsr of The :'rrmp.nv_.- o 10 sbarchy 2005,

leh W Junye AL was appointed as a Non-exeeutive Moo of the Company on 1 Decemsber 2018,

i s Jlvang TANG® was appolnicd i5 a Soneesecutive Diector of the Company on 19 March 2019,

*  For iennfcation purpose anly

116 swershin drwrmibreni Hioldngs Hey Alva Drveloprmesd ©ompeny Lt
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

11. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments wcantimued

Five highest paid individuals” emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, 3 (six months ended
31 December 201 8: 3) were Directors whose details of their emoluments are disclosed above.

The emoluments of the remaining 2 (six months ended 31 December 2018: 2) highest paid
emplovess were as follows:

Six monihs
enchd Year endel
11 December 11 December
eli 1 F 2019
RME T AR TN
Salaries and other benefits 1,146 2,113
Discretionary bonus - 254
Contribidion to setinement bonefiss FIJI‘H- 16 32
1,162 .94

The number of the highest paid employees who are not Directors whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

Six months
entled Year ended
31 Decembier 11 December
EILLE 2019
Mo, of Mo, of
emplovees employees
Wil b HKS1, 000,000 b d =
HES 1, 000,000 1o HES 1,500, 0040 - 2

During the six months ended 31 December 2018 and the vear ended 31 December 2019,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the persons who are Directors or the five
highest paiel individuals of the Group as an inducement 1o join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for lass of office. None of the Direclors has waived any emoluments during the
periodiyear.

ANKLIAL KEPLIT 2004 17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear endhed 31 December X110

12, Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

Sty monitin
erubed Year ended
31 Decomber 31 December
oia 9
) ) RO THID R0
Eamings for the purpose of basic earmings pes share 304,046 612,026
Soumber of ehares
iy months
erbod Year ended
¥ Devermler 3 December
HIIR 9
sauniber of ordinary shares for the purpose of Easic eamings per share 3,081 6HL2E3 3,080, 6000, EES

Mo diluted eamings per share have been presented as there was no potential ordinary shares in
issue turing the periodiyear.

13. Dividends

Sin moniths
e Year ended
31 Dercermbser 11 December
20Ma 29
KA T RAGE 008

Dhividends recognised as a distribasion during the periodiyean

Intesrom efaviclened (o thae vrar encheed 11 Descembaer 20019 of

RMBD.B conts jequivalent 1o HK10.971 394 cents) per share 105,852
linal dividiend for the six manths ended 11 December 2008 paid of

RMBS.9 cents iecquivalent to HK11.615472 cents) (six months ended

A1 Pecember 200A: for the yoar ended 10 June 2008 paid of

RMBD.7 cents jegquivalent io HE1T.114557 cents)) per shane 304,445 7,573
Special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2008 paid of
RMB 10 cents iequivalent to HE1.4583 cents| per share 313,861 -
G5, 306 613,425
118 et dsimeni ohiags ey A Deploprmesd Lompany Lirrind
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

13. Dividends (continueds

Six monihs
encled Year ended
1 Ducembis 31 Decembar
20148 2019
RMB N0 AR TN
Projpuorid o ivicend:
Fimal dividend for the year endesd 11 December 2009 proposed of
RMABI0.1 cents (eguivalent 1o HE 13209679 cents) (six months ended
31 December 200 8: for the six months ended 31 December 20168 of
RAMEDS conts (empavalent e HET1LG1547) centsil per shane 15, (7 11,251

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of RMB10.1 cents (equivalen! 1o
HK11.320989 cents) per share is proposed by the Board of Directors, The dividend is subject o
approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual generl meeting and have not been included
as liabilities in these consolidated financial statements, The proposed final dividend is calculated
based on the total number of issued shares at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements,

14, Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group has established the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “8PF Scheme®) for its
Hong Kong emplovees, The assets of the scheme are held separately in funds which are under
the contral of independent rustees. The retirement benefit scheme cantributions charged to profit
o loss represent contributions paid or payable by the Group to the scheme at 5% of each of the
employees” monthly relevant income capped at HKS30,000, In addition, the PRC employees
employed by the Group are members of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the PRC Government, The Group is required to contribute 18% of their payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
1oy the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under the schemes, At
31 December 2019, there were no forfeited contributions available 1o reduce future obligations,
The total contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme and the PRC retirement
henefit schemes for the year ended 31 December 2009 are RMB1,651,000 {six months ended
31 December 201 8: RMBA420,0001.

ANKLIAL KEPLIT 2004 (B L]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear endhed 31 December X110

15. Interests in Joint Venlures

id FLOE]
SR IND bt
Lindisted investments:
Al ot
Carstoof investment in a joind veniune 200,789 1,024,539
Aglditional coit of Inveamenis 2520218 2,520,218
Shire of mesults of joind ventunes hefore share of imguited nderes
expenses imcurred by a point ventune on mierest-inee regrtered
capital contritsuthons made by the Group (nel of dividend recelved) 14010, 142 1,582,767
Lesis: Liawreliseed prrailit on disposal of land - {32,611)
Liessz Shame of acc urmlited imputed inlerest expenses incurmed by
a psint venlne on interest-imee replsiensd caplital cortrbutions
miade by the Group 431,396) 403, 855)
Less: Accumulaied amostisation of additional cost of investmenis {1,573,335) (1,665,141)
FaaTA408 3,045,877
Al amostised cost
Registered capital contribution, a nominal amount 2,444,500 2,444,500
Falr walue adjusiment an initkal recogrition 12,020,789) (2,020,7TED)
Accumulated imgasted intevest income recopgniced by the Group 431,396 483,895
360,107 912,606
4797525 A4 51,483
120 et dsimeni ohiags ey A Deploprmesd Lompany Lirrind
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

15. Interests in Joint Ventures contisued

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 are as follows:

Mae ol
rilablichmeet
nd gl
place ol Propotion of pegisternd Prapertinn ol
Nast ol coompam mperition Fally paid segnieeed capeal Priscipalactilly  capital coslribetisn wing it beld
2ma mn bl ] m o 11
FIRERCRENER The P ] il Devvlopmment, bl Pl % %
Cusnges Senihes. ol Mok 7 wedminl  gpliable applcable
Theht Sugedbigtway FuAggTerT ol
Commpary Limited Ty
AERBERRNIR The PR KVEES 5P 000, 000 IEMA 299,000,000 Dieopen, 5 b 0% 0%
RRLE (e i {Nale aperaon and
Cuingdong managerent ol
[uuph,u-ﬂl.ﬁq: gy
Wil SpeSihwy
Cinemparyy | imeted
EFHANNRE The PIC KA V0000000 Landdevrioeest w4 7% N4 s
GRLE e il ind uisnm
gy Thesineg
Deiprrent
Cormyury Limsied®

Both GS [V and GF West ]V are sino-foreign co-operative joint venture enterprises established to
invest in toll expressways projects in the PRC,

- Fow iceniiication purpose only

ANKLIAL KEPLIT 2004 121
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 Decomber X009

15. Interests in Joint Venlures continud)

The principal terms of the joint venture agreements entered into hetween the relevant
subsidiaries and the corresponding joint venture partners under which the joint ventures operate
are a5 fol lows:

iy GSIV
G5V is established to undertake the development, operation and management of the
G5 Superhighway, an expressway in Guangdong Province of the PRC running between
Shenzhen and Guangzhou, The operation period is 30 years from the official opening date
T July 1997, At the end of the eperation penod, all the immeovable assets and facilities of GS
IV will revert to the PRC joint ventfure partner without compensation,

The Group’s entitlement to the profit of the toll operations of G5 |V is 50% for the initial 10
years of operation period. 48% for the next 10 years and 45% for the last 10 years of the
aperation period,

The registered capital amounting to HEKS702,000,000 {equivalent to RMBA7 1,000,000
proviowsly injected by the Group to G5 1V had been repaid fo the Group by GS |V during
the yvear ended 30 June 2008,

fii) GZ West |V
GE West |V is established 1o undertake the development, operation and management of GZ
West Superhighway, an expressway linking Guangzhou, Zhongshan and Zhuhai and was
built in three phases.

Phase | of the Gf West Superhighway (“Phase | West™)

The tetal investment for the Phase | West is RMB1,680,000,000, 35% of which was
funded by the registered capital of GZ West |V amounting (o EMBS8S,000,000 which
had been confributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture partners in equal share (e
each 1o contribute RMB294,000,0000. The operation period for Phase | West is 10 years
commaencing from 17 September 2003,

Phase 1l of the GZ West Superhighway (“Phase 1l West")

The tatal investment for Phase 11 West is RMBG,7 15,000,000, 35% of which was funded
by the registered capital of GZ West |V amoonting to BsMB2,351,000,000 which had been
contributed by the Group and the PRC joinl venture partner in equal share (e, each to
contribute RMBET,175,500,0000 The toll collection period for Phase 11 West is 25 years
Commencing from 25 June 20110,

122 et dsimeni ohiags ey A Deploprmesd Lompany Lirrind
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

15. Interests in Joint Ventures continmsed

(i)  GZ Wesl |V (continumed)
Phase 1l of the GZ West Superhighway (*Phase 1T West™)
The total investment for the Phase Il West is RMB5,600,000,000, 35% of which was
funded by the registered capital of GF West [V amounting to EMB1, 960,000,000 which had
been contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture pariner in equal share (i.e, each
to contribute RMBSS0,000,0000. The toll collection peried for Phase Il West is 25 years
commencing from 25 January 20013,

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the fully paid registered capital of GZ West [V was
MBS, 594,000, 000,

The: Group is entitled to 50% of the distributable profits from operation of GE West |V, At
the end of the respective operation/toll collection periods of Phase | West, Phase || West
and Phase I West, all the immovable assets and facilities of each phase will be reverted to
refevant PRC governmental authorty which regulates transporiation withouwt compensation.
The: registered capital contributions are required 1o be repaid to both the Group and the PRC
joint venture partner. The repayments are reguired o be approved by the board of directors
of GF West |V,

(i} Xintang JV
Xintang |V 15 established to enpage in the development of residential project on the Xintang
interchange,

The total repistered capital is RMB10,000,000, 37.5% of which was contributed by the
Group on 5 December 2019,

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's joint ventures and reconciliation of
the summarised financial information o the carrving amount of the inlerests in the respective
joint ventures recognised in the consolidated financial statements are set oul below. The
summarised financial information below repeesents amounts shown in the joint ventures’
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ke 31 December X110

15. Interests in Joint Venlures continued)

Summarised financial information of joinl venlures continued
In respect of the six months ended 31 December 2008 and the year ended 31 December 2009

it} s
Gs[V G Wes [V Torl CEIV G Wl IV Xinting [V Talal
AR ENB 00 RARG0 BuRu0g R0 e R0
Bus-qureen! aisly
Fruperty and sxuigrment A1R17 bbb Ta46d b3, 1T B, THY - 931,951
Conession imanglbie ssets T036.311 11 06442 18,82 TTS 540,004 11,588,116 - 17,918,5M
TAT4AE ILITLE 19,7118 7.0 574 LI - 18860271
Cureenl aisels
Banl baduwes and cash
- Cash anel wash equbvainty 40145 151,541 S50 413405 by 10040 517862
- Vi chepessits with gl
sy ive § minifs 50,000 - S0.000 50,008 - - 50,004
(rbens Hil I 2 "in 42.1% B34 480 f b E]
el 179,724 BL1408 5E1TTR e 487 HEd 5o 1,540 805
Nus-sureent Falslifies
Rearfairg olbgatom AT (107 644) (505,110 e, 701} (122,26 - [ERt ]
Peum-curren [inancial Balsliben
= Bark and byl L GRE] AR (R R (5,236,569} G ALH - B,4%0, 618}
Balinues ol inferesd- ey rogistenad
il coninlaationm murde by
[pinl vertus purtnen - 70214 1,701 - a0 - k) 1}
Butbarurs with joiel venore pariaey - . . - = (299501 (2,952
ey (00 554) 24,17 1455075} (hES 5T (364,380} = 479,358
(830075 |B248. 500 12 750,350 (1AL AER 7510480} EMAT (N2 080
Cureenl Eabdities
Corren! firsan al Babiibe
- Bark by LA R (26,5004 [BE5ATI} 18158 18,5004 - (744,856
- bverest payable 5,74 1.29)) e 514 115 - 2,005
Cibeny (B42.007) (500 282 (W53 (15,384} (285,083} (M7 11,000,104}
{1, 0617, 015 BROTS (LME0RL (ABRASH) (A 55y eI [17Ee
Pt asseta o i verskans 1461363 3,765,407 6,207,205 LANA 4,060,206 am 6,467
Fropartioe of o Groupr's iniesesd L1 5 5% 0% s
e asets shared by the Croop 1,418 18ELIG L1515 1,051 444 20, i 1864 ERFIRA]]
Elirinarion of wrcalinnd profl
en dispasal of land Soke . - . a4t} = = =L
Interesd-foe spgistored capital
contrbations pude by
the Group &t anorisod st - B, HIT AaLI0T - 912508 - 90604
Tard awrty confribytable i
the G 11K & 3 PN 00 (LT ] 1050831 pL TR 186 4003406
fqm.mg amart of addifonal
oond o imestrnond LTS lad1? LI Ed | B19418 BAR - 35,07
['a.n'prg amand of the G’y
wikepst i oine vereurrs FOla2e7 1779048 i HE 11 15784 207818 1864 A A58, 401
Camying amount of wéeredt
il e 10 Bhe Group's
fikal aswnt 1% % £ e 0%
!]4 Wl sl Itlhh'lfl.n duimy Erpploprmesd L nmmpany Limcinf
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

15. Interests in Joint Ventures wconfinucd

Summarised financial information of joint ventures cantineds

S ot endedd 11 Decemmber 1008 Year ended 31 December 2119
(51 G Wt v Tital GSfY GEWelt|¥ Xintarg [V Tokal
LAt ] A0 RA0Y L g EME EARTD R0
Toll revems
et ol wakue-ackdedd L) | 51,058 Te MY 1,150 B2 TATeTE0 =
Conitucton reverus 51,708 Lm ! HLETE 115 .
Toskal revenie 172, 739 H44 LIMs0T TATEDIG -
Conenicton cods 130, 708) im (198,655 7255 -
Cither income and ofher expere [k nid 178687 HET 146
Priowisbon of eesurdac by chargs 119,150 [ 1R (19,130 [H.E21) 5
Todll ey opevaon superss [ri Ji:nj] [LERLY (87,716 5 -
Gemwral and acmirisirative
cxpemici {2,131 {273 (100,764 57,106) [T
Depricathom and
amartsalion cargs 1018 25057k (7B, 8 HEESIH -
Franoe ook 11 RS 181 138 (178540 e 5135
hcre b sxpens 216,189 [ ais AN BT -
e o) bor the poriod/prar 1455 1B HT 1391716 155,166 {0
Propostion of B Croop's slensd 5% M Fiiy a9 mis
Preait hrss) b by the Crowp mm nm [k 199,643 (1,580
[mintion of unrealsed pralic
on chspasal of kind (Mo 1 - - (LA = £
23,771 LR | LT 504,541 199643 {1,586 TUL158
Dividderds recenes!
et of PRI withholding ) 4| m . 3 0M 1A - - 11440
ok

il GS IV dsposed of certaln land with a carmang amount of MBI, 990,000 to the lacal governmenl ot 4 lotal
consideralion of BMEBI79,022,000 in November 2009, Subsequontly, Xintang 1Y won the bid for the land
ise rights with the local government (o acquire part of the aforesald dispesed Land at a todal consideration of
R, 1 24,000,000 in Decombor 2009, As at 31 December 2009, a salo and purchase agroement was entored
Into bwy Kistang IV anel the lecal government while the land is expected o e handed over in 2020, Deposil
amiunting to RMIGEG00,000 was paid by Xintang §¥ in December 20019, G5 |V is regarded as dsposed of
cerain land with a carrying amount of RMB2, 643,000 o Xintang IV, An unrealised profit on disposal of such
lamd wmowntiog s KMBI2,GTT, 000 is eliminated in the comsoliceied financial statements of the Groug,

il Profit for the year of G5 IV includied the amoun of BVEIA982,000 representing the exchange loss (rel ol
redated] income taxi isis months ended 11 December 2078 SME 76,372,000,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 Decowribier 2010

16. Equity Instrument at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

The investment represents interest in unlisted limited company established in the PRC. The
Directors have elected to designate the investment in equity instrument as at FYTOCH as they
believe that the investment is nod held for trading and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable
future,

17. Property and Equipment

Furniture,
Muoltar finttures and
withiches edjuipinent Tatal
RAH 0N A TION RN R
COST
Asat 1 1|.||.'!I 2018 37 4,591 4,938
Addelitinns 1,273 B 1,361
As at 11 Decomber 2008 1,610 4,679 6,289
Aulglitiorm - b6 bl
Digpersal 3371 L] (256)
CAsat 31 December 2019 1,273 5,176 1,549
DEFRECIATION
Avat 1 uly 2008 LEF 4507 4804
Charge for the period 127 v 154
Ax at 31 Decembwor 2008 ai64 4,534 4,998
Charge for the year 255 106 361
Elirminated on disposal 1337 e {356)
s at 31 December 20149 ELv 4,621 5,003
CARRYING AMOUNTS
A oat 31 Decembser 2008 1,146 145 1.291
As at 31 December 2009 a1 bS5 1546

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated over their estimated aseful lives
of 3 to 5 years from the date on which they became available for their intended use using the
straight-line method,

18. Amount due from a Joint Venture
The amount due from a joint venture is ensecured, interest bearing at 8% per annum and
repayable in 2022, Accordingly, the amount is classibed as non-current asset for the purpose of

presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Details aof impairment assessment are set oot in SMote 25
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

19. Bank Balances and Cash
As at 31 December 2019, bank balances and cash comperise cash held by the Group and bank
balances which carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.07% (o 4.57% (31 Decembaer 201 8:

(LT b 4. 39%) per annum,

Analysis of the bank balances and cash of the Group by currency:

2008 2019
RMBTNN  RMBTO0
EMH &, 056 2,916
HEL} 14,06 46,1165
Uimiteel Seates dodlars (<USD®) 5 4
T40.087 49,785
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 25,
20. Share Capital
Murmber Maminal
of shares armadmn|
HES D
Checlinary shares of HKS01 each
Authoriued:
Asat 1 July 2018, 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2019 10, O, D00, 1,000, (eh
Mumber of shares Sominal amouni
Eepiivalent 1
S TR RATR GO0
Isepird armd tully P il;
As at 1 July 2018, 31 December 2008 and
11 December 2009 5001, 6590203 IO, 1649 270,60
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the pear ended 31 Decowribier 2010

20. Shﬂre Lap[t;{l {continued)

Share option scheme

A share option scheme was approved for adoption by the shareholders of the Company effective
an 22 October 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”), The Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years and the purpose of which is to provide the Company
with an altermative means of giving incentive to rewarding, remunerating, compensating and’
or providing benafits to (i) any director, chief executive or employee (whether full-time or part-
time) of any member of the Group; (il any discretionary object of a discretionany trust established
by any director, chiel executive or employee (whether {ull-time or part-time) of any member
af the Group; (i} a company beneficially owned by any director, chief executive or employea
iwhether full-time or part-time) of any member of the Group; Giv) any consultant, professional
and ather adviser to any member of the Group or any consultant, professional and other adviser
proposed to be appointed to any member of the Group (including any of their employess,
partners, directors or executives); (v any associates of any director, chief executive, or substantial
shareholder of any member of the Group and for such other purposes as the Board of Directors
may approve from fime fo time, No share opfions under the Share Option Scheme were granted,
forfeited, vested, lapsed or outstanding in the periodiyears presented,

Share award scheme

On 25 lanuary 2007, an employees’ share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company. The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
15 years commencing from 25 [anuary 2007, Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme,
the Company has set up a trust, HHED Employess’ Share Award Scheme Trust, for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme and holding the awarded shares before they are vested.
There wene no awarded shares pranted, forfeited, vested, lapsed or outstanding in the period’
years presentod.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

21. Company’'s Statement of Financial Position

2008 2019
RATE (0 KATR IR
ASSETS
Won-currenl Assols
Invesiments (0 subsidinries 1.531, 17 1,445,326
Agmowint due from a su':hllllnr,.- | G 7 630 1,693,379
2179555 § i1 30,70
Currenl Assels
Deposits and prepayments 403 40}
Amounts due from susidiaries A3510 302,910
Bank balances and cash 1714778, § 1533
200,491 3064, a3
Total Assets 1,300,046 3,441,540
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Shame capital 270,60% 270,000
Sh.lrrprr'mlum and reserves 2.4710,0681 3,002 569
2,680,644 e s A
Currenl Liabilities
Payables and accruals 26090 gy |
Amicwints dises 1o subsiciares 00, 572 167 5
Taotal Liahilities 699,362 170,376
Total I':q'ulj' anid Liabsilities 1380, s 3440 548
Cash and cash equivalents 114,774 1,333
Tianliang FHANG® Ji Liue
Lhresbaar [Herecilew
Far ddentificanon purpsose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear endhed 31 December X110

21. Company’s Statement of Financial Position wonfinued:

Company's Share Premium and Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the share premium and retained
profits, Under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject 1o
the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution of a dividend, the Company is able to pay its debd as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business, In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
dividends can anly be distributed out of the retained profits and share premium of the Company,
As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders
amounting 1o RMB3,373,169,000 (31 December 201 8; RMB2, 780,681,000), comprising, retained
profits of RMB1,035,480,000 (31 December 2008: RMB442,992.0000 and share premium of
RMB2,337 689,000 (31 December 200 8: RMB2,337.689,0001,

Translation
Share premium reserve  Retained profits Tatal
RMB M0 RATE in) RSO R0
(Mol
As at 1 July 2018 271699 436,019 713 780 3,003,730
Prodit and total comprehensve income
for the pn'lud = = 24,657 24,657
Driwichenals recognised s distribasion
clisring the peerioed (Mode 13, {379,280 65414 | 1M A435) 101, 306)
As al 3 December 2008 2,537 609 [ERCEEL 442992 LA 0ET
Prodit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - 1,205913 1,705,973
Diwiddends recoanised as distribution
churing ther year (Mole 13) - - (613,425) 1B13,425)
As al 31 December 2009 2,337,689 {370, 6401) 1,035,480 3,002,569
Pt

Besfoie Qv changes in fundlional curmency of the Company from HKD o BB duringg the visar ended 30 June 2008, he
cxchange differences recognised In translation reserve representiod the difference between the equity tansactions and
accumulated eamings translated at the exchange rates ot the ramaction dates and the assets and labilities translated
at the closing rates at the end of each reporting peniod.

Thi special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 of RMB10 cems per share amounting to approgimately
RAAEI 13,861,000 was chistribused from the shane premium aricen at thee timee efore the change in imctional cumency

af the Comgany from HED to BME, Accordingly, the shaae presiies and the corresponding tramslation reserve had
bn clebitee] lny RMIEZTS, 280,000 and ¢redilod by BMBGS A19,000 p=gueclively,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

22, Deferred Tax Liabilities

The movement of deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Fair wvalse
change Tas on
i Iivvestmaent undistributed
in equity raAmings
instrument of the joint
al FYTOC) venlures Cihers Tulal
SV il it i
Asat Jlul:.- 2018 - 69310 = G2, 310
Upeening adjusiments q54 - - 54
As at 1 Jify 2018 srestated) 050 69,310 - 70,204
Charge 1o profil or ks - 19,5%0 - 1%, 590
Charge 1o ather comprehensbve inoame [k - - i)
Release o prafit or koss upon payment
af withholding tax - (20,054) - (20,054)
As at 31 December 2018 1,042 Gl B46 - %, B
Charge 1o profit or loss - 41,870 Al 41,334
Charge i ailhier comprehensivie incame 1,150 - - 1,150
Relese o prolil or kss upon paymen
of withholding tax - (32,704) - (42, 70M4)
As at 31 December 2019 2,192 7,012 A6d B0, b
23. Bank Loans
AN A FLLIL]
BAR OO0 BALR DY
Ursecured (MNole) - ZADR
Tha= hank bnans comprise:;
Warialshe rate loams - 2809659

Mok As at 31 December 2019, the bank loans are rr-pa-,.-nhlt- within one year and H,ul.r.'lnbﬂ:'d |:|1' the fnrq:unr.

Included in bank loans are following amounts denominated in currencies other than functional
curréncy of the group entities which it relates:

2018 2019
BN T RATE T
HIKILY 260,909

Az at 31 December 20049, variable rate HED denominated bank loans carried interests ranging
from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIEOR plus 105% w HIBOR plus 1.2% per annum,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 Decomber X009

24, Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of the debe and
equity balance, The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from that of the prior years,

The capital structure of the Group consist of equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital, share premium, retained profits and other reserves,

The Directors review the capital structure periodically, As part of this review, the Direclors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the issue of new debt or the repavment of existing

detn,

The Directors monitor the wtilisation of bank loans and ensures full compliance with loan
covenants during the periodfyear,

25. Financial Instruments

{a) Categories of financial instruments

2018 2m9
Rl ticiey RAE 000
Financial assets

Finanaial issedts at amor sl oosl 144, 801 61,077
Equity instrument at FVTOC) 11,100 22,600
151,20 HWIL6TT

Financial labilities
Finamacial labilities at amortised cost BATS 90,622
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For the vear ended 31 December 2010

25, Financial Instrumenls continued

(b Financial risk management objectives and policies

Thee Directors have averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework. The Group's risk management policies are established to
idlentify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, (o set appropriate risk limits and controls
tr monitor risks and adherence to market conditions and the Group's activities. The
Group, through its fraining and management standards and procedures, aims (o develop a
disciplined and constructive control envirnnment in which all emplovees understand their
roles and obligations. The Directors monitor and manage the financial risks relating to the
operations of the Group to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner,

The Group emplovs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management and does not
engage in trading of any financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for
hedging or speculative purpose.

There has been mo change (o the Group's exposure (o market risks or the manner in which i
manages and measures,

(1) Foreign currency risk
The Group undertake certain fransactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence
exposure (o exchange fluctuation arise. Certain of the financial assets and financial
liahilities of the Group are denominated in HED or USD which are curencies other
than therr respective functional currencies of the respective groug entities. The Group
manages ifs foreign currency risk by constantly monitoring the movement of the foreign
exchange rates.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monitary liahilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilitses
1018 2019 2008 2019
RMETXR —— RMEDAS: RMED0A === RAMBT00,
L5 5 4 - =
HEK 136,045 26,865 5,94 285,054

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency exposure.
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For the pear ended 31 Decowribier 2010

25, Financial Instruments (continued)

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies centinued
(i} Foreign currency risk (confimued)

Sensilivity analysis

The foreign currency risk of the Group and a joint venture is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of RMB, the functional currency of the Company, its subsidiaries and a
jorint venture as at 31 December 2019, against HKD and USD, The following sensitivity
analysis includes currency risk related (o HKD and USD denominated monetary items
of respective group entities and the joint venture,

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk intermally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
passible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes anly
aulstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their ranskation
at the year end for a 5% changie in foreign curmency rate and all other variables are held
constant.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group (excluding the joint ventures) had monetary
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in HKD and USD that is not the functional
currency of the relevant group entities (e, RMB). If exchange rate of BEMB against
HED and USD had heen strengthenedfweakened by 5%, the profit for the year
attribrutable to owners of the Company for the current pericd would decreasefincrease
by RMIB 17,909,000 (six manths ended 31 December 200 8; RMB6, 5003, 0000,

As at 31 December 2009, a joint venture of the Group had outstanding bank loans and
bank balances denominated in HED and USD that are not the functional currency of
a joint venture (e, RMB) The forcign currency risk associated with foreign currency
borrowings and bank balances exposed by a joint venture s reflected in the share
of results of joint ventures. If exchange rate of BMB against HEKD and USD had been
strengthenedfweakened by 5%, the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the current period would increasefdecrease by RMB42,392,000 (six
maonths ended 31 December 200 8: RMB43,417,0001.
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For the vear ended 31 December 2010

25, Financial Instrumenls continued

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(1) Interest rale risk
The cash flows interest rate risk of the Group relates primarily o variable rate bank
Ioans and bank balances with details as set out in notes 23 and 19 respectively and the
variable rate bank loans and bank balances of its joint ventures.

The Group is exposed o fair value interest risk in relation to certain bank balances,
with details as set out in note 19, The management continues to monitor the fair value
interest rate exposure of the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis includes only varable financial instruments outstanding af the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole pericd. A 100 basis points is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates,

As at 31 December 2019, the Group {excluding its joint ventures) are exposed (o
cash flow interest rate in relation to the variable rate bank loans and bank balances.
If interest rate had been 100 (six months ended 31 December 2008: 1001 basis
points higherlower, the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for
the current period would increasefdecrease by RMB2,331,0000 isix months ended
31 December 2018; RMB1_401,000),

As at 31 December 20719, the joint ventures of the Group are exposed 1o cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to the variable rate bank balances and bank loans, IF interest
rate had been 100 {six months ended 31 December 2018: 1000 basis points higher/
lower, the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the current
period would decreasefincrease by RME2Z9, 363,000 (six months ended 31 Decembier
201 8: RMB4AZ, 006, 0000

(iii) Credit risk and impairment assessment
The Group's ceedit risk is primarily attributable to its other receivables, amount due
from a joint venture and bank balances.

Al 31 December 2019, the Group’s maamum exposure to ceedil risk which will
cauvse a financial loss to the Group due to failure o discharge an obligation by the

counterparties is ansing from the carrving amount of the respective financial assets as
stated in the consolidated staternent of financial position.
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For the pear ended 31 Decowribier 2010

25, Financial Instruments (continued)

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies centinued
(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continsed
The Group has significant concentration of credit risk in amount due from a joint
venture, The management is respansible to exercise the joint contral on the relevant
activitivs of the joint venture with a PRC joint venture partner to ensure the joint
venture maintaining favourable financial position in order to reduce such credit risk,

In addition, the management and the respective joint ventures are responsible for
manitoring the procedures (o ensure that follow-up actions are taken 1o recover overdue
debts, in order to minimise other credit risks. The management is also responsible for
reviewing the recoverable amount of cach individual debt at the end of the reporting
pericd 1o ensure that adequate impaimment are made for irecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group™s credit risk is significantly reduced,

The credit risks of the Group on liquid funcs are limited because the counferpartios are
Fanks with good reputation.

CHber than the above, the Croup has no other significant concenfration of credit risk.

The table below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial assets, which
are subyject to ECL assessment:

Gross

Extermal Intermal 1 2-month or carrying
credit rating  credit rating  lifetime BECL amoini
RGO

31 December 2016
Finaneial asseds af amartised cost
Bark balances and cash A MNA 12.month BCL 140,087
11 December HITH
Frnancial assels sl amordised oo
~ Amount duse from a joint venlane MiA Low risk  12-month ECL 31,224
- Bank balances and cash A MiA 12-month ECL 449,TES

fivl Liguidify risk

The Group's treasury activities are centralised to achieve better risk control and
minimise the cost of funds, Cash s generally placed in bank deposits mostly
denominated in RMEB. The management anme o maintain a balance between continuity
af adequate funding and the fexibiliey through the use of bank and other borroawings.
The Group's figuidity and financing reguirements are reviewed regularly to mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash tows, The management will consider new financing
while maintaining appropriate gearing ratio,
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25, Financial Instrumenls continued

(b} Financial sk management objectives and policies (continwed
{iv) |.il]ui[|i|1‘ risk condiruel

At 31 December 2019, the Group has net current liabilitios of EMB243,107,000,
Taking into account of the new uncommitted banking facilities amounting to
HES2, 500,000,000 (equivalent to RMBEZ, 244,165,000 and HKS850,000,000
(eguivalent to RMETG3,0016,000) obtained by the Group in January 2020 and March
2020 respectively of which there are proven records of cash inflows generated from the
joint ventures of the Group together with the good relationship between the relevant
hanks and the Company’s ultimate holding company, enhancing the Group's ability on
ohtaining those bank borrowings when needed as well as internally generated funds of
the Group, the Group has sufficient working capital for its present requirements for the
next twielve months from 31 December 2019,

The carrying amounts of the financial labilities represent the undiscounted cash flows
that the Group is required to pay and are repayable on demand. Bank loans carried
interests ranging from HIBOR ples 1.058% to HIBOR plus 1.2% per annum, All other
financial liabilities are non-interest bearing,

[c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group's financial assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at Gair value at the end of each reporting
perod. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in padicular, the valuation techmgue and inputs wsed), as well as
the lovel of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
ilevels 1 1o 31 based on the degree o which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or habilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observahle for the asset or liability, either directly (e, as
prices) or indirectly (Le. derived rom prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements arg those derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the assel or Bability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs).
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25, Financial Instruments continued)

i) Fair value measurement of financial instruments icontimed
Fair value of the Group's financial assels thal are measured al fair value on a

ru-rurrin!,; h.‘l-\_-i'i. {eonlinued)

Vst Relatiombip of

Fuir vase  echiue and Sifanl umlrienabie ispsh o

Finscial avsels 1018 Wi henarchy key irgrts anchseriable irput fait valoe (Nleh

[ty isirumeni Unbsidoqulty  Unbsiedequily  Lewel 1 Warkrd Priceioaumsings  The highes the msliples

a FYTO0 it imestment Appmuch miatiples of severy the highes e Lir vale
EME 1100000 RMEZLE00,000 oomparabile companes

Ervemprtee valuet-eamsings  The higher the meliples,

bt ke, L, the baghet e i vabe
et and
irnadthation By ERITEM,
midtiples of weverd
woempanidile compunes

Riski arfpasamend w2 Thee higher the discoun,
diwourt oo lack of the lower e fale valie
ket

Mo W the pricesto-earmimgs multiples 1o the valuation model is 5% highesower, while all the other vanabls
wene held constant, the falr valee would increaseflecrease by approsimately BB 347,000 (siy maonths
emtided 31 December 2018: RWBTAI,OD0L N the risk adjustment Toe a discount on lack of marketability
o the valuation model is 5% highedlower, while all the other variables were held constant, the fair
value would decreace/ine rease by approsimatiely RMBGES, 000 (six monihs ended 311 December 201 8:
RAARLE0, Mh),

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at amostised costs are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis,

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assets and fimancial

liabilities recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial stalements appraximate
their fair values,
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26. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2018 and 2019 which principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group as the
Directors are of the opinion that a full list of all the subsidiaries would be of excessive length,

ot ol bncorpiration/ Abtbetable opuity inieest Trapariion ol waling poser
Same of hvedliry il Tstard doud el paid share beld by e Compuny el by e Companry Frincipal activity
byl ] me o1 um IR .14 ]
Kingrece (VY Limind Britch Viegin bamh. Oy thares  Oeliniry shanes i 0% B B35 Iresimers bokdng
Usmme LS50
Hopewe (hiay Hoglimg  Ondnary bt Orlinary thae Lok ! Ni% ¥i% "y breirest n
[rlepares Hig! Hisz l i eiinr] PLTEE Y [rsd
fugperigdan Ny Mobwleg oy due i dus
Lo drbered S delorved dhares
His4 ik
Hopeaed Cuisgrhon Hogliong  Ondaxy das  Ovlinuy dhaos e 0% 1 10 htTetn
Thubu Sipertagtracy HILS? Hig2 of ied ol FprESE gy P
[ievebopeni | vnind Novdng  Nowvoling  onbun hure  wedinary thares
el dury ekl dares
HIS! Hisz
H ey Aeea Fruce Hoglieng Oy dare  Orilieary shae o 1004 1 106% Lian Feasce
|rated ek HER L]
Ioacwwe e HHI
Finaree |mmted
Sheemr [y Area The FL WA Ovlimary thay b1 % L 106%  levvrimens: boiing
Infrasruamues 3150
Abenten
Corsgury Linsied

Except for SIH Bay Area Finance Limited, all the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the period/year.
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For the vear endhed 31 December X110

27. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

Six month
enderd

31 Decormilser
208

RAME WD

stinimum lease payments pald under operating leases for premises during the period 1.0

Al the end of the reporting period, the Group has commitments for future minimem lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as

fralleyws:
2ma
AR 0
Within nne year 1,052

As at 31 December 2018, leases were negotiated for a lease term of one year with fixed rentals,
28. Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group has no outstanding capital commitment,
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29, Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

The table helow details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash chanpes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Oooooooa

Drivielends Interest
Bank lpans payable payable Total
Rh00 RidE 000 f1'000 RAEBU0R
As ab 1 July 2018 - 370,950 170,956
Fimancing cash flows = (001,242 LR (1,008 W
Dividends declaned - &1%405 - 6%, 405
InSeresst pypesnse - - hia? 7
Excharge difieence - 1,881 - 10,881
As at 31 [ecember 2018 = - - =
Fimancing cash flows 280, PG (639,216) (1,123) (359, 380)
Dividends di lared - 624,587 - GEBSHT
Interest expense = = 1,280 1,280
Excharge diffierence - 10,639 - 10,639
As at 31 Descember 2017 IO 26% - 157 281,126

Mot The financing cash flows of bank loans including new bank loans raised of BMES36,221,000 (six manths
ended ¥ December 200 8: RMB265.957,000) and bank loans repaid of RMB265,252 000 (six months ended
A1 Diescembier 200 8: KMB2G5,957 (000 |:|||r|ng T pc-riruﬁ'yrﬂr.

30. Related Party Transactions
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during the year
ended 31 December 20149, the Group enfitled to receive interest income from a joint venture of

RMB 1,924,000 (six months ended 31 December 20008: Ml

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel who are all Qirectors is disclosed innote 11,

31. Guarantee
As at 31 December 2009, the uncommitied banking facilities of the Company’s whaolly-owned

subsidiary of RMB1,256,732,000 (11 December 2018; BRMB263, 3890001 are guaranteed by the
Company. The Company s able to contro] the utilisation of the facilities.
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32. Contingent Liability

During the year ended 30 June 2008, a subsidiary of the Company recovered the registered
capital of HKS702,000,000 fequivalent to RMBATT,000,000) previously injected to the GS
IV, According to the Law of the PRC on Chinese-foreign Contractual Joint Venture, in relation
to the early repayment of registered capital to the foreign joint venture partner by the G5 IV
before the expiry of the operation period, the subsidiary of the Company, as the foreign joint
venture partner, is required to undertake the financial obligations of the GS |V to the extent of
HK$702,000,000 when the GS IV fails to meet its financial obligations during the joint venture
operation period,

33. Event After the Reporting Period

Pursuant to the *Notice from the Ministry of Transport on Waiver of Tolls on Toll Roads
During the Prevention and Control of Epidemic Caused by the Novel Coronavirus Preumaonia”
{liao Gong Lu Ming Dian [2020] No. 62 ( {32380 & 58 5 W B SR TG 2 I S ik 1 2
FHWETT AR AT [2020] 62 8 ) issued by the Ministry of Transport of the
PRC on 15 February 2020 (the “Notice™, with the approval of the State Council, the Ministry
of Transport determined that tolls of toll roads will be waived nationwide for all vehicles
tegally travelling through the toll roads during the period of the prevention and control of the
epicdemic cansed by the novel coronavirus pneumonia. The tall-free period commences from
00:00 a.m. on 17 February 2020 Gll the end of the prevention and contral of the epidemic, which
applies to vehicles on non-networcked toll expressways and commaon highwaws according to the
time: of passing throwgh the toll lane of the toll station, and applies to vehicles on networked toll
expressways according o the time of leaving the exit of the toll lane {the *Toll-free Period”), The
specific end date is subject to further notice.

According to the above, the Notice is applicable to the G5 Superhighway and the GZ West
Superhighway operated by the Group's joint ventures. All vehicles legally travelling through
those expressways during the Toll-free Pesiod shall be waived from tolls. Since tall income
constifues the primary source of revenoe of the Group's joint ventures, it is expected that the
implementation of the Notice will inevitably have a negative impact on the business performance
of the Group.

In view of the above, the Directors considered that the financial effects of the novel coronavirus
preumonia on the Group’s consolidated financial statements cannot be reasonably estimated.

34. Approval of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements on papges 85 to 142 were approved and authorised for isswe
by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2020,

142 swershn drvrsbreni Hicldngs Hey Arva Dveeboprmesd  company Limdind
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company Limited

(Formerly knownas Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited )
(incorporated in the Cayman Islandswith limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area
Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referredto as “the
Group”) set out on pages 85 to 142, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December2019, and the consolidated statementof profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summaryof significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial positionof the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordancewith International
FinancialReporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethicalresponsibilities in
accordancewith the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, inour professional judgement,were of most significance in
ouraudit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matterswere addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separateopinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

oOoOooodn

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Interests in jointventures (“JVs”) and share of results of JVs
— Amortisation of concession intangible assets of the JVs

We identified the amortisation of concession intangible
assets of the JVs as a key audit matterbecause significant
judgements are requiredin determining the estimation of
future traffic volume which has an impact on the carrying
value of the concession intangible assets of the JVs as at
year end and the amortisation chargesfor the currentand
future years. As set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, the two JVs of the Group are engaged
in the development, operation and management of
expressway s under service concession agreements with
the right to collecttolls for operating two expressways in
GuangdongProvince of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"),one of which runs between Shenzhen and
Guangzhou and the other one links Guangzhou,
Zhongshan and Zhuhai with the toll collection periods
ranging from 25 years to 30 years. The Group has
accounted for its interests in these JVs using the equity

method of accounting.

Our procedures in relation to the amortisation of
concession intangible assets of the JVs included:

+ Evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policy adopted and whether
such accounting policy adopted reflects
the consumption pattern of the
concession intangible assets and
benchmarking with other companies in the

sameindustry;

+ Undertaking a detailed analysis on the
significant judgements and estimates
used in management’s estimation as

mentioned below; and

« Comparing the expectedtraffic volume
estimated by the management in the past
against the actual traffic volume in previous
years and the historical trend of
trafficvolume, and then obtaining reasons
for any variances, as well as evaluating the
appropriateness, key basis and
assumptions, including the annual growth
rate of the traffic volume, the change of the
transportation network of the region and
government policies relating to the toll
expressway operation in the PRC.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures (“JVs") and share of results of JVs
— Amortisation of concession intangible assets of the JVs
(continued)

As set outin note 5(i) to the consolidated financial
statements, the interests in JVs as at 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB4,858,483,000 and the shareof results of
JVs for the yearthen ended 31 December 2019 amounted
toRMB700,552,000. Included in the share of results of JVs,
there was an amortisation of concession intangible assets
of the JVs shared by the Group amountingto
RMB624,304,000 for the year ended 31 December2019
which was calculated based on units-of-usage basis, i.e.
the ratio of actual traffic volume of the underlying toll
expressways for a particular periodover the totalexpected
traffic volume of the underlying toll expressway s over the
remaining concession period of the service concession

agreements.

The total expectedtraffic volume over the remaining
concession period was estimatedby the management
with reference to a report prepared by a thirdparty traffic
consultantin a prior year taken into consideration of
various factorssuch as the annual growthrate of the traffic
volume, the actual traffic volume in the recent periods, the
change of the transportation network of the region and
government policies relating to the toll expressway

operation in the PRC.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

oOoOooodn

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures (“JVs") and share of results of JVs
— Resurfacing obligations of the JVs

We identified the resurfacing obligations of the JVs as a key
audit matter due to the management'’s judgement involved in
determining the amount of provision by discounted cash
flow method which is based on the number of major .
resurfacing works to be undertaken over the concession

periods under the service concession agreements and the
expectedcosts to be incurred for each event and then
discounted to the present valuebased on a pre-tax discount

rate which could in turn affect the carrying amount of .
interests in JVs as at 31 December 2019 and share of

results of JVs for the year ended 31 December 2019 under
theequity method of accounting for the reason stated in the
abovekey audit matter.

As disclosed in note 5(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the JVs ofthe Group have contractual
obligations under the contractual service concession
arrangements to maintainthe toll expressways to a
specified level of serviceability over the respective .
concession periods. Theseobligations to maintain or
restorethe toll expressways, except for upgrade services,

are to be recognised as resurfacing obligations in the

financial statements of the JVs.
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Our procedures in relationto evaluate the
resurfacing obligations of the JVs included:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology, key bases and assumptions
made by management in estimating the
obligations;

Assessing the reasonableness of the
expected costs of the resurfacing works
and the number of major resurfacing works
to be undertaken over the remaining
concession periodbased on the technical
report prepared by the engineering
department of the JVs and the actual costs
incurred for resurfacing works in recent
periods;

Evaluating the appropriateness of the discount
rate and the timingfor discounting used by
the management with reference to

theborrowing rate of theJVs; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

oOoOooodn

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures (“JVs") and share of results of JVs
— Resurfacing obligations of the JVs (continued)

As further disclosed in note 5(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, the interests in JVs as at 31 December
2019 amounted to RMB4,858,483,000 and share of
resultsof JVs for the year then ended 31 December 2019
amounted to RMB700,552,000. Included in the interests in
JVs,there was a provision of resurfacing obligations of the
JVs sharedby the Group amounting to RMB236,207,000 as
at31 December 2019.

The expected costs for maintenance and resurfacing and
the timingof such event totake place involve estimates
made by the management of the Group, which were
taken into consideration of the resurfacing plans of the
JVs, historical costs incurred for similar activities and the
latest quotations from the service provider. These expected
costs were then discounted to the presentvalue based on a
discount rate determined by the management of the Group
that reflected the time value of the money and the risk

specific to the obligation.

Other Information

« Evaluating the projected traffic volume
projection based on procedures performed
in the keyaudit matter related to the
amortisation on concession intangible
assets of the JVs as mentioned above
which is used for determining the amount of
resurfacing expense to be charged to profit

or loss in the respective reporting period.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, indoing so, considerwhether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
materialmisstatement of this other information, we are required to reportthat fact. We have nothing to

reportin this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governancefor the
Consolidated FinancialStatements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordancewith IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong CompaniesOrdinance, and for such internalcontrol as the directors determine is
necessary to enablethe preparation of consolidated financialstatements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continueas a going concern, disclosing,as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accountingunless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuranceabout whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includesour opinion solelyto you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose.We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high leve lof assurance, but
is not a guaranteethat an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif,
individually or in the aggregate,they could reasonably be expected to influencethe economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercis e professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraudor error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higherthan for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion,forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposeof expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policiesused and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’'use of the going concernbasis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s abilityto continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overallpresentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
includingthe disclosures, and whether the consolidated financialstatements represent the
underlying transactions and eventsin a manner that achievesfair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of thegroup audit.
We remain solelyresponsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

We communicate with those chargedwith governance regarding, among other matters,the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statementthat we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are thereforethe key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulationprecludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor'sreport is Hung SukFan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
8 March 2020
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